
 

 
 
MEETING: PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION PANEL 
  
DATE: Friday 10th March, 2023 

  
TIME: 10.00 am 

  
VENUE: Bootle Town Hall/hybrid 

  
 
DECISION MAKER: PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 

PANEL 

  
 Councillor Lappin 

Councillor Byrom 
Councillor Dowd 

Councillor Shaw 
 

 

 
 COMMITTEE OFFICER: Jayne Vincent 

Consultation and Engagement Lead 
 Telephone: 0151 934 3840 
 Fax:  

 E-mail: Jayne.vincentl@sefton.gov.uk 
 

The Cabinet is responsible for making what are known as Key Decisions, 

which will be notified on the Forward Plan.  Items marked with an * on the 
agenda involve Key Decisions 
A key decision, as defined in the Council’s Constitution, is: - 

● any Executive decision that is not in the Annual Revenue Budget and 
Capital Programme approved by the Council and which requires a gross 

budget expenditure, saving or virement of more than £100,000 or more 
than 2% of a Departmental budget, whichever is the greater 

● any Executive decision where the outcome will have a significant impact 

on a significant number of people living or working in two or more Wards 

 
 

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 

facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist. 

 

Public Document Pack



A G E N D A 
 
Items marked with an * involve key decisions 
 

 Item 

No. 

Subject/Author(s) Wards Affected  

  

  1.   Welcome and apologies. 

 

  

  2.   Declarations of Interest   

  Members are requested at a meeting where a 
disclosable pecuniary interest or personal 

interest arises, which is not already included in 
their Register of Members' Interests, to declare 
any interests that relate to an item on the 

agenda. 
 

Where a Member discloses a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest, he/she must withdraw from 
the meeting room, including from the public 

gallery, during the whole consideration of any 
item of business in which he/she has an 

interest, except where he/she is permitted to 
remain as a result of a grant of a dispensation. 
 

Where a Member discloses a personal interest 
he/she must seek advice from the Monitoring 

Officer or staff member representing the 
Monitoring Officer to determine whether the 
Member should withdraw from the meeting 

room, including from the public gallery, during 
the whole consideration of any item of business 

in which he/she has an interest or whether the 
Member can remain in the meeting or remain in 
the meeting and vote on the relevant decision. 

 

  

  3.   Minutes of meeting held on Friday 13th 
January 2023. 

 

 (Pages 5 - 
14) 

  4.   Matters Arising. 

 
  

  5.   Improving Information Group update - 

presentation. 

 

  

  6.   Physical Activity Strategy consultation. 

 
 (Pages 15 - 

30) 

  7.   Public Health Procurement - 

recommissioning of the Living Well Sefton 
Service, Sefton Stop Smoking Service and 

Integration of Health Checks. 

 

 (Pages 31 - 

90) 



  8.   Climate Change Emergency Feedback & 
Evaluation report. 

 

 (Pages 91 - 
142) 

  9.   Any Other Business 

 
  

  10.   Date of next meeting - Friday, 26th May 2023 
10.00am - 12.00 noon, Bootle Town Hall with 

hybrid using Microsoft Teams. 

 

  

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION PANEL MEETING 

13th January 2023 

Magdalen House, Bootle, 10.00am – 12.00 noon 

Present: 

Councillor Les Byrom (Chair) 
Councillor Liz Dowd – Ford Ward 
Diane Blair – Healthwatch Sefton 
Georgia Ribbons – Young Advisor Lead for Sefton CVS 
Nick McCormack – Station Manager (MFRS) 
Lee Davies – Transport Planner – Strategic Planning & Infrastructure Team – Sefton 
Council 
Mike Mullin – Service Manager, Business Support and Investment, Sefton Council 
Jayne Vincent – Public & Consultation Engagement Lead – Sefton Council 
Cheryl Yates, Participation Officer, Sefton Council 
Darcy De Winter – Executive Graduate 
 
Apologies  
Councillor Paulette Lappin (Chair)  
Councillor Tony Brough – Ainsdale Ward 
Nigel Bellamy – Assistant Chief Executive - Sefton CVS 
Dr Mike Homfray – VCF Sector and Equalities representative 
Lyn Cooke – NHS Cheshire and Merseyside Integrated Care Board 
 
 
 ACTION  

 
 

Welcome  
 

 Chair welcomed everyone to the Panel Meeting and asked 
all to introduce themselves. 

 

 

2. Declarations of Interest  
 

No Declarations of Interest were received 
 

 

3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 

The minutes held on the 11 November 2022 are a true and 
accurate record 

 

 

4. Matters arising from last Agenda  
 
No matters arising. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

 

5.Annualk report 2022 and refreshed Public Engagement 
and Consultation Framework – Jayne Vincent 

 
Jayne mentioned that every year there is an annual report which 
looks at the consultation and engagement activity that has taken 
place in the previous 12 months.  
 
During 2022, there has been seven meetings (of which 2 were 
additional meetings) of the Public Engagement and Consultation 
Panel, where the Panel has appraised the following 15 
proposals for consultation, 15 Feedback and Evaluation Reports 
and 2 information presentations. 
 
There were also 29 surveys on the Your Sefton Your Say 
consultation hub – 14 ‘private’ or targeted consultations and 15 
which were open to the public. 
 
Jayne explained that the Panel has been working to a Public 
Engagement and Consultation Framework since 2009, which 
sets out some principles, standards for consultation and 
information about the Public Engagement and Consultation 
Panel.  These parts of the Framework are still needed and used 
but some areas of the Framework needed updating and to also 
strengthen youth voice and co-production. 
 
The refreshed Framework will also go to the Council meeting in 
January for approval. 
 
There will be supporting documents and a promotional 
campaign to help raise awareness with the workforce. 
 
There will also be a consultation and training needs assessment 
that will help us to understand: 
 

• Levels of awareness of the standards, the Panel and 
processes and other relevant guidance. 

• Levels of experience and confidence of consultation, 
engagement, and co-production activity. 

• Other relevant training courses attended. 
• Any areas of expertise willing to share with others. 
• Whether interested in becoming an Accessible 

Information Advocate. 
 
The Training Needs Assessment will take place in 
January/February and a report will come back to a future 
meeting of the Panel. 
 
Jayne mentioned that she had received some feedback about 
crediting some of the images to a photographer who took the 
photos and from Tracy Jeffes, who is involved in consultation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



 

 

and engagement strategy and delivery with NHS Cheshire and 
Merseyside (Sefton Partnership).  The feedback was focused 
on: 
 

• Reference the Health and Care Act, (and have links to 
these in the document page) 

• Reference the Sefton Partnership and the People and 
Communities guidance and working relationship/shared 
responsibilities 

• Include the Cheshire and Merseyside Integrated Care 
Board as a partner 

• Review the monitoring scorecard against the aims 
• Have links to some other relevant policies and documents 
• Few small tweaks to wording 

 
The Chair thanked Jayne for her report and asked if there were 
any comments or questions? 
 
Councillor Liz Dowd said that she was impressed by the number 
of consultations taking place and the refreshed document should 
reference the Children and Families Act 2014, and the SEND 
Code of conduct. 
 
Councillor Byrom said that the document is comprehensive and 
likes that it gives regard to equalities and cooperating with other 
organisations. 
 
It was agreed to change Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service to 
Merseyside Fire and Rescue Authority. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jayne Vincent 

6.  Youth Voice and Participation Toolkit – Georgia Ribbens 
 
Georgia explained that in 2015, the toolkit was developed by 
Sefton Council, Health and Voluntary, Community and Faith 
(VCF) organisations, to guide the work of services for all young 
people. 
 
Following a paper given by Nigel Bellamy at the Children and 
Young People’s Partnership Board, a new Sefton Strategic 
Youth Voice Steering group has been set up chaired by Sharon 
Cotterall (Children and Families Development Officer at Sefton 
CVS). 
 
There have been three meetings held to date and one of the 
activities that has taken place is the updating of the Youth Voice 
and Participation Toolkit. 
 
Comments and input were invited from members of the Strategic 
Youth Voice Steering Group and Members of the Every Child 
Matter’s Forum. A presentation about the updating of the toolkit 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



 

 

was given at the ECM Forum Meeting on Friday 3rd December 
2022. 
 
The Sefton Young Advisors have taken onboard the comments 
and their own and updated the content, design, and layout of the 
document to bring it up to date from the 2015 version.  
 
Cllr Byrom acknowledged that having information in easy read 
can mean that the document is longer.   
 
Cllr Byrom said that it was important to involve young people at 
an early stage. 
 
Jayne mentioned that she had shared the refreshed Toolkit with 
the Council’s Strategic Leadership Board and they were asked 
by the Chief Executive to look at how to use the document to 
engage and involve children and young people.  It was felt that a 
communication campaign would help to promote it. 
 
Cllr Byrom agreed that promoting it to schools, school council 
and school parliament would help too. 
 
Diane Blair said it was a good way to engage young people but 
also wondered if the Toolkit should include something about 
feeding back to young people. 
 
Georgia explained that the ladder of participation helps with 
feeding back to young people. 
 
Cheryl Yates agreed that it was also a good toolkit and 
wondered whether it should include examples of things that 
have been successful – case studies? 
 
Jayne Vincent agreed that case studies would help promote 
good practice. 
 
Cllr Byrom felt that there needs to be some awareness with 
managers and how the resource can help them involve young 
people. 
 
Lee Davies said that the information in the toolkit can help with 
the preparation of Equality Impact Assessments. 
 
Cllr Byrom thanked Georgia for her report 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Georgia 
Ribbens 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Georgia 
Ribbens 
 
 
 
 
 

7.  Sefton Economic Strategy Feedback and Evaluation 
Report – Mike Mullin 
 
The Sefton Economic Strategy (SES) 2022 is an update, refresh 
and re-purposing of SES 2019. It also builds on the work of the 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



 

 

Sefton Strategic Recovery Plan (Economy) produced in May 
2021 and sets out the Council’s Economic priorities to help lead 
the recovery process from the COVID-19 pandemic. The plan 
will set our Sefton’s strategic priorities for: 
 

• Employment and opportunities for work 
• Business Growth & Investment 
• Social inclusion and access for all 
• Regenerated places 

 
Mike explained that the public consultation exercise started on 
20th July and ended on 17th August 2022. The draft evidence 
base report was circulated (on two occasions) to over 2,600 
businesses, developers/investors with a link to an online survey-
in addition: 
 

• A dedicated Council webpage and on-line consultation 
portal was produced. 

• The consultation report and questionnaires were also 
produced in easy read formats. 

• Several Sefton Communications tweets/press and social 
media releases on a weekly basis. 

• The document was recirculated by Sefton CVS to its 
member organisations. 

• Sefton Economic Forum-15 July attended by over 100 
business delegates. 

• Sefton in Mind-27 July attended by over 10 
representatives. 

• People First Merseyside-11 August attended by over 20 
Board members. 

• Sefton Partnership Board-15 August attended by over 15 
board members. 

 
Mike explained that a full consultation report had been written 
and there was an easy read version of the report too. The 
consultation reports provide all the consultation results and was 
sent out as part of the agenda pack for the meeting.  
 
Mike said that the information in accessible formats was well 
received and that some businesses preferred the information in 
that format.  Mike said that they will be looking at how to simplify 
language going forward.  
 
Mike explained that the feedback will help with the Action Plan 
that the Economy Cell is putting together.  He also said that the 
information will be used to: 
 

• Share with the Health and Wellbeing Board and the 
Public Health team 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



 

 

• Inform the Strand development 
• Share with the digital business forum 
• Help Sefton at Work with the employment advice for 

people with learning disabilities 
• Contact about 20 people who said they wanted to stay 

involved in the development of the plan 
• Help the business advisors to provide the support that 

businesses are asking for 
 
Cllr Byrom asked Mike if there were any plans for Sefton to have 
a Chamber of Commerce again? 
 
Mike explained that there are different models used across the 
region and that in 2014 Liverpool took over Sefton’s Chamber of 
Commerce, for a while.  There is the Federation of Small 
Businesses which Invest Sefton work with, and Invest Sefton 
address any gaps. 
 
Cllr Byrom said it was important that there was support for 
businesses and new businesses. 
 
Cllr Dowd felt it was a great piece of work and the feedback and 
Action Plan can provide a checklist for any decisions going 
forward, so it is an active tool. 
 
Jayne Vincent mentioned that any Action Plan would need to 
have an accessible version, that the easy read report be shared 
with People First Merseyside. 
 
Lee Davies asked whether the feedback from some businesses 
about preferring accessible language has meant that this has 
influenced how the service is communicating with businesses on 
a day-to-day basis? 
 
Mike said that most of the support to businesses is through 
conversations or face-to-face meetings. 
 
Mike thanked Jayne for her support throughout the process and 
will be looking to access the training going forward. 
 
Jayne explained to the Panel about the accessible information 
e-learning training and that some partners are using it.  She 
agreed to send the information to Nick for the MFRS. 
 
Cllr Byrom thanked Mike for attending and for his report. 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mike Mullin 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jayne Vincent 
 
 
 
 

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



 

 

8. Low Carbon Transport Strategy – Lee Davies 
 
Lee explained that the Council is committed to a Climate 
Emergency Action Plan as part of a response to Sefton 
Council’s Climate Change Emergency Declaration in 2019. One 
of the key themes of the Action Plan is for the Council to 
consider both its own carbon use but to also consider policies 
and strategies to reduce carbon emissions across the borough.  
 
The vision and objectives of the Low Carbon Transport Strategy 
will help to ensure we act on Climate Change and work towards 
meeting the emissions targets. They also closely link to the 
Sefton 2030 Vision, and in particular the core themes of a 
borough for everyone; a clean, green, and beautiful borough; 
and on the move. 
 
The Low Carbon Transport Strategy is being discussed with Cllr 
Fairclough the Cabinet Member Locality Services and is being 
led by Peter Moore (Assistant Director of Place – Highways and 
Public Protection). The need to progress with this strategy has 
been presented at several officer and Member groups, including 
Strategic Leadership Board: Member Officer Working Group for 
Active Travel, Climate Emergency Member Reference Group 
and Air Quality Member Reference Group. An Equalities Impact 
Assessment is in development and will be updated as the 
strategy develops. 
 
The stakeholder map has been done to identify the different 
stakeholders who will be informed, consulted, and engaged.  
There will be early-stage consultation to introduce the vision and 
the overarching messages and set the context for further work 
into specific areas of actions. 
 
It is intended that stages 1 and 2 will be the warming up phase 
of the consultation to ensure that all Key Stakeholders of high 
interest and high influence are engaged and have had the 
opportunity to discuss this and ask any questions before 
cascading this to their networks.  Stage 3 onwards will be the 
wider public engagement phase. 
 
There will be stakeholder sessions, public roadshows and 
events and a social media campaign.  There will also be the 
establishment of the Inclusive Streets Advisory Group to 
comprise members who have lived experience of a protected 
characteristic and have an interest in transport planning / 
engineering / urban design.  
 
The intention is to also re-establish the Sefton Active Travel 
Network (ATN) formally known as the Sefton Cycle Chat.  This 
networking group will have the specific focus on Active Travel 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



 

 

 
Cllr Byrom acknowledged that transport during covid and the 
pandemic had changed the way people travelled and that other 
areas have Clean Air Zones.  There needs to be a shift in the 
way people travel but electric cars are expensive. 
 
Cheryl explained that the Making a Difference group have travel 
passes and that it is also looking at the workforce as some staff 
who need to travel out of the borough, must come into the 
borough to collect the electric car, to then drive out of the 
borough again. 
 
Jayne explained that the Making a Difference Group and 
Healthwatch Sefton have been involved in consultations before 
and have an interest in Air Quality. 
 
Jayne mentioned that the workforce of the Council and partner 
organisations would be good to consult with. 
 
Lee explained that at the moment there is a review of the ‘grey 
miles’ - alternatives to travelling when not needed – A  car-club 
and looking at the data to help identify solutions. 
 
Cllr Dowd said that there could be tensions between the Low 
Carbon Transport Strategy and the regeneration agenda.  
Freeports could have an impact on congestion.  There is a need 
to link with other feedback from consultations, to help inform 
strategy. 
 
Nick McCormack explained that the MFRS would like to be 
involved in conversations as electric cars and charging of 
vehicles can cause fires.  There are some community messages 
to be shared with people about charging vehicles and storing 
and charging electric scooters in the home. 
 
Nick explained that this also links to economic 
strategy/deprivation as some people cannot afford to buy the 
right chargers.  New businesses and people working from home 
can also have a simple operational fire assessment to check 
that they are working in a safe environment.  
 
Nick to send Mike Mullin information to be shared to businesses. 
 
Cllr Dowd said that the air pollution reports presented to 
Overview and Scrutiny are the benchmarks needed for decision-
making. 
 
Cllr Dowd thanked Lee for her report and asked that she come 
back to the Panel with her feedback and evaluation report.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Nick 
McCormack 
 
 
 
 
Lee Davies 

Page 12

Agenda Item 3



 

 

9.  Any Other Business 
 
Jayne explained that in previous years there has been a SEND 
Parent and Carer survey.  There has been a request from the 
SEND Continual Improvement Board to have another survey 
this year and for this to take place in March to take advantage of 
the Local Offer Live event on the 1st March, as parents and 
carers will be there. 
 
Jayne asked if the Panel would be happy for a consultation plan 
to be sent virtually to them on this occasion? 
 
Cllr Byrom and the Panel agreed that this can happen. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jayne Vincent 

14.  Date of Next Meeting  
 
Next meeting will be a hybrid meeting at Bootle Town Hall and 
Microsoft Teams 
10th March 2023 @ 10 am – 12.00 noon  
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 15 

AGENDA ITEM 6 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel. 
Date: 10th March 2023. 

Title: Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity – 
Physical Activity Strategy.  

1. Purpose of the Report 

1.1 To receive information with regard to the consultation plans being developed 
with regard to the development of a Physical Activity Strategy for Sefton. 

2. Background. 

2.1 The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is to 
coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and consultation, in 
accordance with the standards for engagement and consultation. 

3. Name of Issue you are Consulting on. 

3.1 Physical activity is a key part of a healthy lifestyle and can contribute to good 
mental wellbeing and reduce the risk of serious illness. Physical activity is also 
a factor in reducing obesity.  

3.2 About 40% of adults in Sefton are not taking part in the recommend 150 
minutes of physical activity per week, of which 30% are doing less than 30 
minutes (Active Lives survey Nov 2021). 71% of adults are overweight or obese 
(Public Health Fingertips place profile). Both figures are worse than the national 
average. 

3.3 The data also demonstrates that specifically in Sefton, those who are physical 
active also report higher wellbeing than those who are inactive as shown by the 
chart below (Active Lives survey Nov 2021). 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



Page 2 of 15 

 

3.4 Building on the work of the Sport England Uniting the Movement Strategy, and 
the emerging learning from the Sport England Local Delivery Pilots (places that 
have been exploring place based approaches to improving physical activity 
levels) it is proposed that Sefton develops a physical activity strategy that will 
draw together partners from across the Sefton public and voluntary sectors to 
collaborate on key priorities. 

3.5 An important phase of the strategy will be to understand the barriers and 
challenges communities face in becoming more active, and the ways in which 
things could be different to make it easier.  

3.6 Therefore, the purpose of this report is to provide the Engagement and 
Consultation Panel with information relating to the proposed consultation 
exercise for Sefton Physical Activity Strategy and to seek feedback. 

4. The Consultation 

4.1 Consultation and engagement will be carried out with the support of external 
consultants to provide additional capacity, expertise, and impartiality. This will 
commence 1st April 2023 and conclude on 30th June 2023. 

4.2  There will be three different engagement streams running concurrently through 
the consultation period: 

1. Engagement sessions with local residents. 
2. A survey hosted on Your Sefton Your Say. 
3. A stakeholder engagement event. 

4.3 As the consultation and engagement progresses, we will be flexible and adapt 
the approach as and where needed to ensure that the right voices are informing 
our work. 

4.4 The engagement with local residents will consist of 30 - 60 minute 
conversations with already established groups. We will work through partner 
organisations to identify a range of groups that will provide a good spread 

Page 16

Agenda Item 6



Page 3 of 15 

geographically and demographically. The conversations will utilise the Life 
course reflection tool (Appendix 1) to explore both the barriers to physical 
activity, the things that helped people back into activity and the events that 
occur in people’s lives that lead to changes in activity. 

4.5 Groups that we will engage include those who are currently active, recently 
become active and are currently inactive. These conversations will be held in 
April and May and organised in collaboration with our partner organisations. We 
would welcome input from the Engagement and Consultation Panel to help us 
identify the right groups to speak to. 

4.6 The survey (Appendix 2) will be available through April and May and focus on 
barriers to activity, circumstances that enable physical activity, and the life 
course events that lead to change in physical activity levels in people’s lives. 
The survey will be delivered through the Your Sefton Your Say web portal and 
collect basis demographic data including postcode data. 

4.7 A Stakeholder Engagement Event will be held in June and will build on the 
emerging insight from the survey and engagement with local residents. 
Stakeholders from the following sectors will be invited to attend. This event will 
involve reviewing the insight received to date, considering current partnerships 
and approaches to physical activity and discussing key priorities and approaches 
that will form a central spine of the emerging strategy. 

▪ Education. 
▪ Health – Primary Care & Secondary Care. 
▪ Integrated Care System/Board. 
▪ Public Health. 
▪ Local Government. 
▪ Voluntary, Community and Faith Organisations. 
▪ Police, Fire and emergency services. 
▪ Community Groups and Friends of Groups. 
▪ Active Partnership and Sports Governing Bodies. 
4.8 The consultation and engagement will include gathering both quantitative and 

qualitative feedback to provide the statistical and anecdotal evidence required 
to enable a complete view to be established. 

5. Reporting and Publishing the Findings. 
5.1   The report and subsequent findings will be published August 2023. 

6. Legal Department Comments. 
6.1 Sefton’s Legal Department has considered the consultation plans contained in 

this report and has no comments to make. 
7. Recommendations. 
7.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to: 

  a) Appraise the public engagement and consultation plan for the 
Physical Activity Strategy. 

b) Request that the officers return to the Panel to provide details of 
their consultation results, including an analysis of the equality 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



Page 4 of 15 

monitoring data and the feedback and evaluation resulting from the 
above consultation. 

Page 18

Agenda Item 6



 

Page 5 of 15 

Appendix 1 – Life Course Reflection Tool. 

 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 6



Page 6 of 15 

                        

 
  
  
  

 
  
 
  
 
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
 

  
 
 
  
  

 
  
  
  
  

 
 
 
  
  
  
 
  
  
  
 
  
  
  
 

                                                                                                                                     

                                    

                                      

                                                                           

        

                                                                         

                

                                                                           

                 

                                                                           

                                             

                                                                          

                         

                                                                        

                                                     

                                                                       

                                                                     

             

                                                                  

                           

                       

                      

                     

                            

                         

                          

                      

                    

                             

                            

                          

                              

       

                             

                       

                       

                   

                     

                       

                           

                         

   

                               

                               

                        

                               

                

                          

                            

                                                                                                                                                               

       

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 6



 

Page 7 of 15 

Appendix 2 – Survey (Hosted on YourSeftonYourSay) 
We would like to gather your views, as residents in Sefton on how you feel a physical activity, what 
things get in the way of being more active, and how we could make it easier for people to be 
active. Your individual personal information will not be shared with services. 

What is the survey for? 
The answers that you give in this survey will help us to develop a plan to bring local orgnisations 
together to make it easier for people to be active. We want to use the feedback to help us see 
what might be working well and where improvements need to be made. Your feedback is 
important.   

This survey should take no more than10 minutes to complete. 

When will the consultation start and finish? 
The consultation will start on Wednesday 1st April 2023 and end on Wednesday 30th June 2023. 

How can I give my ideas? 
Go to https://yourseftonyoursay.sefton.gov.uk/and look for Physical Activity Strategy consultation. 
You can also scan the QR code, which will take you to the survey. 

1. What impact, if any, have the life events below had on your physical activity levels?  
a. Changing schools (No Impact, Positive Impact, Negative Impact, Not Applicable)  
b. Leaving school (No Impact, Positive Impact, Negative Impact, Not Applicable) 
c. Getting a new job (No Impact, Positive Impact, Negative Impact, Not Applicable)  
d. Losing your job (No Impact, Positive Impact, Negative Impact, Not Applicable)  
e. Having a baby/Starting a family (No Impact, Positive Impact, Negative Impact, Not 

Applicable)  
f. Moving house (No Impact, Positive Impact, Negative Impact, Not Applicable) 
g. Entering a new relationship (No Impact, Positive Impact, Negative Impact, Not 

Applicable)  
h. Separating from your partner (No Impact, Positive Impact, Negative Impact, Not 

Applicable)  
i. Change in your health condition (No Impact, Positive Impact, Negative Impact, Not 

Applicable) 
j. Bereavement (No Impact, Positive Impact, Negative Impact, Not Applicable) 
k. Retirement (No Impact, Positive Impact, Negative Impact, Not Applicable) 
l. Other (Please specify) (No Impact, Positive Impact, Negative Impact, Not 

Applicable) 

2. If you had more support/encouragement at that time in your life to become or continue to be 
active, what impact would that have had? 

a. Positive Impact 
b. Negative Impact 
c. No impact 
d. Not applicable 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



Page 8 of 15 

3. How physically active do you think you are? Remember physical activity includes all forms 
of activity, such as everyday walking or cycling to get from A to B, active play, work-related 
activity, active recreation (such as working out in a gym), dancing, gardening or playing 
active games, as well as organised and competitive sport). 

a. Active (over 2.5hrs/week).  
b. Fairly Active (30mins - 2.5hrs/week);  
c. Inactive (less that 30mins / week) 

4. What type of physical activity do you do? (Please tick all that apply and whether you do the 
activity on your own, with other people or both, if applicable). 

a. Walking 
b. Jogging/running  
c. Cycling  
d. Gym  
e. Swimming  
f. Exercise classes  
g. Football  
h. Other team sports  
i. Dancing  
j. Martial arts  
k. Racquet sports  
l. Gardening  
m. Manual labour  
n. Other (Please specify)  

5. What motivates you to take part in physical activity (please tick all that are applicable) 
a. Improve general health and wellbeing  
b. Increase fitness  
c. Weight loss  
d. Lifestyle choice  
e. Competition  
f. Friends and family  
g. Enjoyment/fun  
h. Sense of accomplishment  
i. Reduce stress  
j. Other (Please specify)  

6. What is preventing you from doing it? (Please tick all that apply). - Selected Choice 
a. Lack of motivation  
b. Family commitments  
c. Lack of time  

Page 22

Agenda Item 6



Page 9 of 15 

d. Cost  
e. Lack of option near me  
f. Health reasons  
g. Lack of confidence  
h. Work schedule  
i. Carer responsibilities  
j. Weather  
k. Other (please specify) 

7. If clubs, groups and activities were more welcoming to new participants, what impact would 
that have for you? 

a. More likely to give it a try 
b. Less likely to give it a try 
c. Wouldn’t make a difference  

8. What would encourage you to increase your physical activity levels? (Please tick all that 
apply 

a. Understanding the benefits of physical activity  

b. Someone to help me get started 

c. Encouragement from a trusted professional (for example, Doctor, Nurse, Teacher, 

Community Leader, Local Council) 

d. Someone to go with  

e. Free activities  

f. More information about what is available in my area  

g. Nothing 

9. What are the barriers in your local area that may prevent people from being physically active? 
(Free Text) 

10. What, or who, helps people in your local area to be physically active? (Free Text) 
11. Please write below any ideas about things that could be done in your local area to help people 

become more active. (Free Text) 

  

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



Page 10 of 15 

About You 

These questions are optional and are asked in accordance with the Privacy Notice.  You can 
complete as much or as little as you wish. 

12. How old are you? 

a. Under 18 

b. 18 – 29  

c. 30 – 39  

d. 40 – 49 

e. 50 – 59 

f. 60 – 69  

g. 70 – 79  

h. 80 – 84 

i. 85+ 

j. Prefer not to say  

13. Are you  

a. Male 

b. Female 

c. Prefer not to say 

14. Section 7 (1) of the Equality Act states that: ‘A person has the protected characteristic of 
gender reassignment if the person is proposing to undergo, is undergoing or has undergone 
a process (or part of a process) for the purpose of reassigning the person's sex by changing 
physiological or other attributes of sex. 

 (Please note that ‘process’ does not mean only a medical process) 

Regarding the above statement, do you consider yourself to have the protected 
characteristic of gender reassignment? 

a. Yes 

b. No 

c. Prefer not to say  

15. If you answered ‘yes’ to the above, do you currently identify with your birth sex? 

a. Yes 

b. No 

c. Prefer not to say  

  

Page 24

Agenda Item 6



Page 11 of 15 

16.  If you answered ‘No’ to 3a, are you: 

a. Transgender 

b. No binary 

c. Define differently  

d. Prefer not to say  

 Please tell us how you identify………….. 

17. How would you describe your sexual orientation? 

a. Heterosexual / straight 

b. Gay 

c. Lesbian 

d. Define differently 

e. Bisexual 

f. Prefer not to say 

g. Please tell us how you identify 

18. Disability: Do you have any of the following (please tick all that apply): 

a. Physical impairment 

b. Visual impairment 

c. Hearing impairment 

d. Learning difficulty 

e. Learning disability 

f. Autism / Asperger’s 

g. Mental Health condition 

h. Long term illness that affects your daily life 

i. Dementia 

j. Prefer not to say 

Please read the following statement … 

19. If you have ticked any of the boxes above, or you have cancer, diabetes or HIV this would 
be classed as ‘disability’ under the legislation.  Do you consider yourself to be ‘disabled’? 

a. Yes 

b. No 

c. Prefer not to say 

  

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



Page 12 of 15 

20. What is your religion/belief? 

a. No religion / belief 

b. Christian 

c. Hindu 

d. Muslim 

e. Jewish 

f. Sikh 

g. Prefer not to say 

21. Race/ethnicity (please note that Sikh and Jewish are collected in the Religion/Belief Section 
above) – do you identify as:  

a. Prefer not to say 

White 

b. English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish / British Irish 
c. Irish 
d. Gypsy or Irish Traveller 
e. Roma 
f. Polish 
g. Portuguese 
h. Latvian 
i. Any other white background 

Mixed / Multiple ethnic groups 
j. White and Black Caribbean 

k. White & Black African 

l. White and Asian 

Asian/Asian British 
m. Indian 

n. Pakistani 

o. Bangladeshi 

p. Chinese 

q. Any other Asian background (please describe) 

Black/African/Caribbean/Black British 
r. African 

s. Caribbean 

t. Any other Black / African / Caribbean background (please describe) 

  

Page 26

Agenda Item 6



Page 13 of 15 

Another ethnic group 
u. Arab 

v. Any other ethnic background 

Thank you for filling in this form. This information will not be able to tell us who you are. But it will 
help us to understand if we are missing people out.  

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



Page 14 of 15 

Appendix 3 - Interim Equality Analysis Report: Sefton Physical Activity Strategy. 

Details of the Proposal. 

The Council has an ambition, to work closely with local partners and residents to develop a place-
based Physical Activity Strategy for Sefton. Miova, collaborative change architects have been 
awarded the commission to support the Council in achieving this aim. 

To ensure that the strategy builds on the existing strengths of our place, builds a sense of shared 
ownership, and has the relevant energy and structure to build momentum into the medium term, 
the proposed approach will involve four phases of work. The four phases are shown below. 

The initial phase is crucial to gain important insight from residents and stakeholders to shape the 
strategy’s development. During Phase 1 people, especially those who are currently inactive or only 
newly active are being asked about their own experience of physical activity; what they enjoy 
doing, who with and why. The impact of life course events will also be explored as will intrinsic and 
extrinsic motivators. 

The engagement process is an opportunity for residents to share their views and ensure that their 
lived experiences inform the future direction and ambition of place based partners across Sefton to 
work with local people for improved access and opportunities to move more and increase levels of 
physical activity. 

It is proposed that Phase 2 involves a whole day systems partner event. 

Ramifications of the proposal. 

Through the engaging, interesting, and motivating engagement phases crucial insight will be 
gained from partners and the public regarding the current physical activity landscape in terms of 
assets and partners involved in the place; opportunities for physical activity engagement to 
increase and identifying gaps and challenges within the system that are preventing physical 
activity being easy for local people. This insight will be used to develop a shared vision, principles 
and priorities at the heart of Sefton’s new physical activity strategy. 
Through the involvement in the co-design of engagement activities partners and system leaders 
across Sefton will have experienced creative engagement techniques and design and will have 
gained valuable insight and skills usable beyond the life of the strategy development. 
Are there any protected characteristics that will be disproportionally affected in comparison to 
others. 
The protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 are: 

• Age 
• Disability 
• Gender Reassignment 
• Marriage and Civil Partnership 
• Race 
• Religion or Belief 
• Sex 
• Sexual Orientation 
• Pregnancy and Maternity 

Well established evidence demonstrates that people with some of the above protected 
characteristics are already more likely to be inactive that others. The engagement phase will try to 

Page 28

Agenda Item 6



Page 15 of 15 

ensure that their voices are heard, inform and shape the vision for the strategy to improve access 
to activity for all. 

Sefton Council’s agreed equality questions will be used within the engagement and survey. If during 
this phase it is identified that input is not being captured from some groups, then there is opportunity 
to include focus/discussion sessions with groups in order to ensure appropriate representation. 
 
Consultation. 

Engagement activities will include supporting locally trusted leaders (community groups, 
organisations and Council colleagues) to facilitate informal conversations with key groups who are 
more likely to be less engaged in physical activity, e.g. women and girls, older people, people with 
disabilities, different cultures etc; stakeholders and particularly cohorts of inactive/newly active 
individuals within Sefton. The conversations will be designed to easily collect the insight and views 
of the participants in an anonymised format. There will also be a widely available on-line digital 
survey structured to capture the same type of information as the face to face conversations to 
ensure that insight is sought and gained from a wide range of people across the borough. 

Is there evidence that the Public Sector Equality Duties will be met? 

The engagement phase will seek views from a wide range of stakeholders of all ages including 
inclusion groups and young people. The Council’s equality questions, used within this phase will 
be analysed to provide information on equality and reach of the engagement phase. The Physical 
Activity Strategy will explore the impact of people’s life events and experiences to shape an 
approach across Sefton that will seek to improve access to physical activity opportunities for all 
residents. 

What actions will follow if proposal accepted by cabinet & Council? 

Next steps will include using the insight gathered from the engagement phase to shape and 
develop a draft strategy to be produced by Miova Consulting. 

Subject to the outcome of the engagement phase this Equality Impact Assessment will be updated 
accordingly as the strategy evolves. 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                           

Page 1 of 40 

 

 

Agenda Item 7 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 

Date: Friday 10th March 

Title: Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity – in 
relation to the recommissioning of the Living Well Sefton Service, Sefton Stop 
Smoking Service and Integration of Health Checks. 

Report of: Heather Redhead, Public Health Lead, heather.redhead@sefton.gov.uk 

1. Purpose of the Report 

1.1.  To receive information with regard to the consultation plans being developed 
with regard to the recommissioning of the Living Well Sefton Service, Sefton 
Stop Smoking Service and Integration of NHS Health Checks. 

2. Background 

2.1  The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is to 
coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and consultation, in 
accordance with the standards for engagement and consultation. 

3. Name of Issue you are Consulting on 

3.1  Existing contracts for the current Living Well Sefton Service and the Stop 
Smoking service will cease on March 31st, 2024, so the recommissioning 
process has started to meet procurement guidelines. This process will be 
thorough and diligent to ensure new service specifications meet the needs of 
the Sefton community and consultation with a range of new and existing 
stakeholders will give insight that can be utilised. An EIA is enclosed. 

  

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



Page 2 of 40 

 

4. The Consultation. 

 4.1 There is some existing consultation from the current providers and stakeholders 
that will be used as part of the wider consultation work. There has been 
extensive consulting done with young people recently particularly in relation to 
smoking, vaping and the Stop Smoking service. This will be used to inform and 
avoid reconsulting with the same cohort of population, so no further young 
people surveys will be issued through this consultation. Small focus groups will 
be delivered with specific groups, such as young people with special educational 
needs or disability, looked after children and care experienced young people and 
families of young people.  There is also national and regional evidence that will 
be considered alongside the results we collate which inform a wider spectrum of 
insight to best inform the new service specification development. 

➢ e-consult online surveys for service providers/staff, service 
users and stakeholders. 

➢ Focus groups for service providers/staff and service users. 
➢ Stakeholder meetings including primary care. 
➢ E-bulletins. 
➢ Internal workshops (for the wider Public Health team). 
➢ One-to-one interviews/meetings with service providers. 

4.2 Further Consultation and Engagement Activity. 

A number of key methods will be used to consult, involve and communicate with 
service users, service providers and partners to help shape the service 
specification and ensure the appointed service meets the needs of Sefton 
residents. 

Engagement and communication will continue throughout the development of the 
commissioning and delivery of these service, ensuring that services users and key 
stakeholders are involved in the long term.  

The methods that will be used to gain insight and thoughts to feed into the 
specification will be specific to the target group as detailed below. 

4.3 Public. 

• Information to be uploaded onto the Council’s website, with links to partners’ 
websites, to include news updates. Promotional material will be placed in key 
community venues such as where services are currently delivered, community 
centres and libraries. 

• Workshops with service users and the public held in across Sefton and also 
on an individual interview basis. Workshops and meetings targeting groups 

Page 32

Agenda Item 7



Page 3 of 40 

 

who do not usually use engage with services, as well as people with a 
learning disability. This will be done by working with organisations that offer 
support to such individuals such as Peoples first, voluntary, community and 
faith sector organisations and Sefton’s Partnership for Older Citizens  

• Surveys will available online and hard copies distributed through our service 
providers and partners such as Healthwatch and NHS services. 

• Feedback from this engagement activity is planned in September 2023 by 
placing information on the public health pages of the council website, sharing 
feedback updates to forums and organisations currently engaged and 
summary results sent to provider service. It will also include feedback to 
service users, ‘You said, we did’ as well as   posters placed in relevant 
community venues and shared with providers with results placed on e-consult 
website. 

• Letters informing clients of any commissioning or decommissioning 
arrangements if and when these occur. 

4.4 Service providers 

• An information workshop is planned to inform current and possible future 
providers of the Integrated Wellness Service- Living Well Sefton, but 
importantly to gain provider input to help shape the service model. All 
information collected from this event will be placed on to the CHEST, the 
Northwest procurement portal to ensure consistency and transparency for all 
providers This will also enable updates to be consistent, visible and prompt. 

• Communications via written correspondence meetings, to inform service 
providers of developments and key milestones when required.  

• Formal notification of any commissioning or decommissioning arrangements 
with service providers through letters and meetings  

4.5 Stakeholders 

• Workshops and individual meetings will be held with a range of partners. 
• World ‘café style’ will enable the workshops to be a relaxed setting which 

will suit the variety of partners. 
• A stakeholder questionnaire is enclosed which will also be shared.  
 
• Potential stakeholders have been considered as below; 

o Primary Care practitioners, including GPs 
o Family Wellbeing Staff 
o Social workers 
o Voluntary, Community and Faith sector partners 
o Mersey Care Foundation Trust 
o Secondary care partners where appropriate, e.g. clinical obesity 

services 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



Page 4 of 40 

 

o Education partners, including colleges to ensure the voices of 
young adults are captured 

o Carers Centre 
o Career Connect 
o Probation Services 
o Housing Partners 

4.6 Communications Plan 

Current service providers will be informed of the consultation process and 
timescales. This will be done through meeting directly with the existing 
providers, email consultation, and interviews with existing staff. 

Communication with stakeholders and partners will include email 
correspondence and briefing meetings with individual or collective 
organisations. 

A workshop will be held for wider stakeholders and partners, including existing 
service providers, to input their thoughts on what is needed from the new 
series specifications. 

Communication with Sefton’s population will be through public channels such 
as social media, websites and leaflets, alongside working with community 
partners to ensure the information reaches all parts of the borough. 

5. Reporting and Publishing the Findings. 

The finding will be collated and used to inform the new service specifications. 
The results of the insight will be shared at this panel in the autumn. 

6. Legal Department Comments 

 6.1  Sefton’s Legal Department has considered the consultation plans 
contained in this report and has no comments to make. 

  

Page 34

Agenda Item 7



Page 5 of 40 

 

7. Recommendations 

 7.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended in 
relation to the recommissioning of the Living Well Sefton Service, Sefton 
Stop Smoking Service and Integration of Health Checks to. 

a) Appraise the public engagement and consultation plan for the 
Recommissioning of the Living Well Sefton Service, Sefton Stop 
Smoking Service and Integration of Health Checks. 

b) Request that the officers return to the panel to provide details of 
their consultation results, including an analysis of the equality 
monitoring data and the feedback and evaluation resulting from 
the above consultation. 

  

Page 35

Agenda Item 7



 

Page 6 of 40 

 

 

Annex 1 

Service User Sefton Integrated Wellness 
Service. 

Sefton’s Integrated Wellness Service ‘Living Well Sefton’ The service contributes to 
the aims of the Council priorities of mental health, reducing obesity and overweight 
and building community resourcefulness. We want to help people who live in Sefton 
to make positive lifestyle changes. We want to offer practical support on a range of 
topics including: 

• Stopping smoking 
• Sensible drinking 
• Being more active 

• Being a healthy weight 
• Reducing stress 
• Feeling good about yourself and about your life 
• Increasing physical activity 

We want to do this in a number of ways as we know that different people will want 
different types of help. 

This service will have a central place for all healthy lifestyle information so people 
can get the information they need to change their lifestyle be this over the phone, 
online or being directed to a programme/group or class to help people make 
changes. This central place will help people to identify the changes a person wants 
to make to improve their health and help people to make these entire changes, not 
just one such as losing weight and stopping smoking. 

Section A 

Service User 

Q1. Please tell us how you accessed the service? 

 GP-referral 
 Self-referral 

Page 36

Agenda Item 7



Page 7 of 40 

 

 Other health professional referral - please state the name of the 
service/provider 
…………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Q2. Please tell us the service you were referred to. 

 The Living Well Sefton Service (directed to Q3.) 
 SmokeFree Sefton (directed to Q4.) 
 Health Checks (directed to Q4.) 
 None of the above (Directed to Section B) 

Q3. Can you tell us the reason why you were referred and what support 
you needed? 

 To eat more healthily 
 To lose weight 
 To become more active 
 Financial support 
 Social isolation 
 Stress and/or Anxiety 
 Other (please explain) 

…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Q4. Did you find the service easy to access? (By access we mean is the 
venue easy to get to) 

 Yes 
 No 

If no, please explain why 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Q5. When you first heard about the service, can you tell us if you were 
given a clear understanding of the service and what it offered? 

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



Page 8 of 40 

 

 Yes 
 No 
 If no, please explain why 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Q6.  When you first attended the service did the information and support 
work well for you? 

 Yes 
 No 

If no, please explain why 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 

Q7. Can you tell us what works well in the service and how it has helped 
you? For example, you could consider any activities or sessions you 
attended 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………………….... 

Q8. Are there any barriers that could prevent people from attending the 
service? 

 Yes 
 No 

If yes, please explain why 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Q9. Would you recommend the service you attended to others? 

 Yes 

Page 38

Agenda Item 7



Page 9 of 40 

 

 No 

If no, please explain why 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Q10. Can you tell us how other people can be encouraged to attend the 
service? 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Q11. Please detail any further feedback below: 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Please move on to section B 

  

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



Page 10 of 40 

 

Section B 

NHS Health Check 
The NHS Health Check is a free check-up of your overall health. It can tell you 
whether you're at higher risk of getting certain health problems, such as heart 
disease, diabetes, kidney disease and stroke. 

During the check-up, you are asked questions about your lifestyle and some 
measurements will be taken including your weight, height and blood pressure.  You 
are also given advice and support to reduce your risk of these conditions as well as 
dementia. 

You are eligible if you are aged 40-74 years old and do not have any of the following 
conditions: 

• Heart disease 
• Diabetes 
• Stroke (Including mini stroke) 
• Kidney Disease 
• High blood pressure (Hypertension) 
• Peripheral Arterial Disease 
• Atrial Fibrillation 
• Taking statin medication to lower cholesterol 
• Been told you have a more than 20% increased risk of getting heart disease in 

the next 10 years. 

  

Page 40

Agenda Item 7

https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/coronary-heart-disease/
https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/coronary-heart-disease/
https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/diabetes/
https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/kidney-disease/
https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/stroke/
https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/dementia/dementia-prevention/


Page 11 of 40 

 

Questions on NHS Health Checks 

Q1. Are you eligible for an NHS Health Check? 

 Yes (go to Q 3) 
 No (go to Q2) 

Q2. Have you ever had an NHS health check? 

 Yes, I have had an NHS health check in the last 5 years (go to q 5) 
 Yes, I have had an NHS health check but not in the last 5 years (end survey 

here/ go to next section) 
 No, I have never had an NHS health Check (go to Section C) 

Q3. Are you interested in having an NHS Health Check? 

 Yes but I have not had an NHS Health Check in the last 5 years (go to Q4) 
 I have had an NHS Heath Check within the last 5 years (go to Q5) 
 No I am not interested in an NHS Health Check (go to section C) 
 If no, please explain why 

…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Q4. What would make it easier for you to get an NHS Health Check? (tick 
all that apply) 

 Times (evenings) 
 Times (weekends) 
 Times (day time) 
 Locations GPs/Community* 
 Easy to book 
 Information on the benefits of having an NHS Health Check 
 Access to free lifestyle support following the NHS Health Check 
 Add from list 
 Other -free text  box 

Once Q4 has been completed please move on to Section C 

Page 41

Agenda Item 7



Page 12 of 40 

 

Q5. How did you feel about your overall experience of and NHS Health 
Check? 

 Very Happy 
 Happy 
 Neither happy/unhappy 
 Unhappy 
 Very unhappy 

Please tell us why? -  optional 
…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Q6. How did you feel about the advice you received during your NHS 
Health Check? 

 Very Happy 
 Happy 
 Neither happy/unhappy 
 Unhappy 
 Very unhappy 

Please tell us why? -  optional 
…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Q7. What can we do in Sefton to improve NHS Health Checks (Tick all that 
apply)  

 Weekend appointments 
 Evening appointments 
 Invitations 
 More in-depth health check and support 
 Access to free lifestyle support 
 Access to free community activities 
 Carried out within GP practice 
 Carried out in community venues 
 Other suggestions? Please state below 

……………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Page 42

Agenda Item 7



Page 13 of 40 

 

Q8. Did you make changes to your lifestyle following your health check? 

 Yes 
 No 

Can you tell us the change(s) you made, please tick all that apply. 

 Improved diet 
 Increased physical activity 
 Joined a gym/sport club/activity 
 Lost weight 
 Accessed Stop Smoking Services 
 Accessed weight management services 
 Accessed national diabetes prevention programme 
 Reduced alcohol intake 
 Stopped Smoking 
 Linked up with a community group 
 Booked an appointment to see my doctor/ practice nurse 
 Other 

…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Please move on to section C  

  

Page 43

Agenda Item 7



Page 14 of 40 

 

Section C 

Stop smoking Service 

Sefton’s specialist stop smoking services is part of Sefton’s Living Well Service 
(LWS) and is available to all ages of Sefton residents. Sefton’s stop smoking service 
is available to provides tailored advice and support for those people who wish to give 
up smoking or using e-cigarettes. The service uses local community settings to 
deliver face to face support on an individual or group basis.  Service users can also 
access the service via a telephone helpline if it is more appropriate. 

The service has been designed to be flexible and accessible, offering packages of 
support that are tailored to individual.  Advice is provided in a range of community 
settings, can be face to face, in groups, online chat or over the phone. 

Q1. Which statement best describes you? 

 I smoke and do not wish to give up 
 I smoke but would like to give up 
 I used to smoke 
 I am a social smoker 
 I use e-cigarettes 
 I have never smoked (Go to section D) 

Q2. Have you accessed Smoke Free Sefton service? 

 Yes (go to Q3) 
 No (go to section D) 

Q3. How did you hear about the service? 

 Health Professional 
 GP 
  Poster/Leaflet Advert  
  National Health Line  
  Self Referral  
 Other Please specify 

…………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

Page 44

Agenda Item 7



Page 15 of 40 

 

Q. 4 How did you feel about your overall experience of Smokefree Sefton? 

 Very Happy 
 Happy 
 Neither happy/unhappy 
 Unhappy 
 Very unhappy - Please tell us why? -  optional 

…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………… 

 Q. 5 How did you feel about the advice you received during your 
Smokefree Sefton? 

 Very Happy 
 Happy 
 Neither happy/unhappy 
 Unhappy 
 Very unhappy - Please tell us why? -  optional 

…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Q. 6 What can we do in Sefton to improve the Smoke Free Sefton service? 

…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Q. 7 Did you stop smoking after attending smoke free sefton? 

 Yes 
 No (go to section D) 

  

Page 45

Agenda Item 7



Page 16 of 40 

 

Section D 

Some Questions About You. 

These questions are optional, you do not have to answer 

them.  All this information is private.  We bring together the 

answers. This information will not be able to tell us who you 

are, but it will help us to understand if we are missing people 

out. 

Can you provide us with the first part of your postcode  

How old are you? 

Under 18.   18 – 29. 

30 – 39.     40 – 49. 

50 – 59.    60 – 69. 

70 – 79.    80 – 84. 

85+    Prefer not to say. 

2. Gender. 

Male. 

Female. 

Prefer not to say. 

People who are planning to, started to, or have changed 

their sex are protected by the Equalities Act.  

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

Page 46

Agenda Item 7



Page 17 of 40 

 

3. Are you planning to, started to, or have changed your sex?  

This is called gender reassignment. 

Yes 

No 

Prefer not to say 

3a If you answered Yes to question 3 

Do you currently live as the sex you were given when you 

were born? 

Yes 

No 

Prefer not to say 

3b If you do not live as the sex you were given at birth, are 

you? 

Transgender 

Nonbinary 

I identify differently 

I prefer not to say 

4. Relationships - How would you describe your sexual 

orientation? 

Heterosexual or straight 

Gay 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



Page 18 of 40 

 

 

Lesbian. 

Bisexual. 

Prefer not to say 

I identify differently 

5. Disability - Do you have any of the following? 

Physical Impairment 

Visual Impairment 

Learning difficulty 

Hearing Impairment / Deaf 

Learning Disabilities 

Long term illness that affects your daily life 

Autism Spectrum Condition 

Dementia 

Mental Health Condition 

Prefer not to say 

If you have Cancer, diabetes, or HIV this is seen as a disability 

under the Equalities Law. 

Or you have selected any of the boxes in question 5 (above). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 48

Agenda Item 7



Page 19 of 40 

 

6. Do you think of yourself as disabled? 

Yes 

No 

Prefer not to say 

7. What is your religion or belief? 

No religion or belief 

Christian 

Hindu 

Muslim 

Jewish 

Sikh 

Prefer not to say 

Other, please tell us _____________ 

8. Race and ethnicity - do you identify as:  

White. 

English, Welsh, Scottish, Northern Irish, British 

Irish 

Gypsy or Irish Traveller 

Roma 

Polish 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



Page 20 of 40 

 

Portuguese 

Latvian 

Other White Background.  Please tell us 

Mixed or Multiple ethnic groups 

White and Black Carribean 

White and Black African 

White and Asian 

Other Mixed or Multiple ethnic background 

Asian or Asian British. 

Indian 

Bangladeshi 

Pakistani 

Black 

Chinese 

Other Asian background.  Please tell us 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 50

Agenda Item 7



Page 21 of 40 

 

Black or Black British 

African 

Caribbean 

British 

Asian 

Other Black Background.  Please tell us 

 Other Ethnic Group. 

Arab.  Another ethnic group. Please tell us. 

End of Survey   

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 51

Agenda Item 7



Page 22 of 40 

 

Annex 2  

Non Service User 

Sefton Integrated Wellness Service 

Sefton’s Integrated Wellness Service ‘Living Well Sefton’ The service contributes to 
the aims of the Council priorities of mental health, reducing obesity and overweight 
and building community resourcefulness. We want to help people who live in Sefton 
to make positive lifestyle changes. We want to offer practical support on a range of 
topics including  

• Stopping smoking 
• Sensible drinking 
• Being more active 
• Being a healthy weight 
• Reducing stress 
• Feeling good about yourself and about your life 
• Increasing physical activity 

We want to do this in a number of ways as we know that different people will want 
different types of help: 

This service will have a central place for all healthy lifestyle information so people 
can get the information they need to change their lifestyle be this over the phone, 
online or being directed to a programme/group or class to help people make 
changes. 

This central place will help people to identify the changes a person wants to make to 
improve their health and help people to make these entire changes, not just one such 
as losing weight and stopping smoking. 

  

Page 52

Agenda Item 7



Page 23 of 40 

 

Section A- Lifestyle service questions 

Q1. Do you: 

 Live in Sefton 
 Work in Sefton 
 Other - please explain 

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Q2. Which of these health topics are most important to you? 

 Drinking less alcohol 
 Eating more healthy foods 
 Being more active/ moving more 
 Being a healthy weight 
 Help to stop smoking 
 Stress ‘management’ 
 Financial support 
 Social isolation 
 Other - please explain 

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Q3. How would you like to access support on these topics? 

 Online 
 Over the telephone 
 Face to face (121 support) 
 Face to face (group support) 
 Other - please explain 

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 

 

Q4. How easy have you found it to get healthy lifestyle support and 
services in Sefton? 

 Very easy 
 Easy 
 Not very easy  
 Difficult  

Page 53

Agenda Item 7



Page 24 of 40 

 

 Never accessed 

Q5. Have you used any of the following healthy lifestyle services in 
Sefton? 

 The Living Well Sefton Service 
 SmokeFree Sefton 
 Health Checks 
 None 

Q6. If you have not used any healthy lifestyle services, is it because 

 You haven’t seen them advertised/ don’t know of them 
 You don’t know how to join 
 You have tried them, but they don’t work for you 
 Not delivered at the right time for you 
 Other - please explain 

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Q7. Would any of the following encourage you to use healthy lifestyle 
services? 

 Open at times that suit you and your family e.g after work 
 Service is delivered in a way that suits you and your family e.g drop in sessions 
 Online sessions 
 Text support 
 Phone support  
 Recommendation from a family member or friend 
 Delivered at GP surgery or health centre 
 A buddy to attend the programme with 
 Services available in local community venues 
 Services delivered by local groups 

Q8. In what format would you like to gain information about healthy 
lifestyle services? 

 Face to face 
 Online website 

Page 54

Agenda Item 7



Page 25 of 40 

 

 Online using social media 
 Over telephone 
 Over text message 
 Over email 
 By post 

Q9. How would you like to get access to healthy lifestyle services? 

 Self-referral i.e., by yourself 
 Referral by a health professional e.g., a GP to make the referral on your behalf 

Q10. Where would you expect to find healthy lifestyle services? 

 GP practices 
 Healthy Living centre i.e., Netherton Feelgood Factory, Brighter Living 
 Partnership or May Logan Centre 
 Community centres 
 Shopping centres 
 Mobile health unit  
 Leisure Centres 
 Other please explain 

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Q13. Would you like to be able to get additional help after you have 
finished a programme to help you to maintain your change or to feel 
better? 

 Yes (go to Q14) 
 No (go to Q16) 

Q14. What additional help would you like? 

 Email follow up 
 Telephone follow up 
 Face to face follow up 
 Other - 

PleaseState…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 

Page 55

Agenda Item 7



Page 26 of 40 

 

Q15. How often would you like to receive this information? 

 Weekly 
 Monthly 
 Bimonthly 
 Annual 

Q16. Please detail any further feedback below: 

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 

Please move on to section B 

 

  

Page 56

Agenda Item 7



Page 27 of 40 

 

Section B 

NHS Health Check 
The NHS Health Check is a free check-up of your overall health. It can tell you 
whether you're at higher risk of getting certain health problems, such as heart 
disease, diabetes, kidney disease and stroke. 

During the check-up, you are asked questions about your lifestyle and some 
measurements will be taken including your weight, height and blood pressure.  You 
are also given advice and support to reduce your risk of these conditions as well as 
dementia. 

You are eligible if you are aged 40-74 years old and do not have any of the following 
conditions: 

• Heart disease 
• Diabetes 
• Stroke (Including mini stroke) 
• Kidney Disease 
• High blood pressure (Hypertension) 
• Peripheral Arterial Disease 
• Atrial Fibrillation 
• Taking statin medication to lower cholesterol 
• Been told you have a more than 20% increased risk of getting heart disease in 

the next 10 years. 

Questions on NHS Health Checks 

Q1. Are you eligible for an NHS Health Check? 

 Yes (go to q 3) 
 No (go to q2) 

Q2. Have you ever had an NHS health check? 

 Yes, I have had an NHS health check in the last 5 years (go to q 5) 
 Yes, I have had an NHS health check but not in the last 5 years (end survey 

here/ go to next section) 

Page 57

Agenda Item 7

https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/coronary-heart-disease/
https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/coronary-heart-disease/
https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/diabetes/
https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/kidney-disease/
https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/stroke/
https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/dementia/dementia-prevention/


Page 28 of 40 

 

 No, I have never had an NHS health Check (end survey here/ go to next 
section) 

Q3. Are you interested in having an NHS Health Check? 

 Yes but I have not had an NHS Health Check in the last 5 years (go to q4) 
 I have had an NHS Heath Check within the last 5 years (go to q5) 
 No I am not interested in an NHS Health Check (go to section C) 

If no, please explain why 
…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Q4. What would make it easier for you to get an NHS Health Check? (tick 
all that apply) 

 Times (evenings) 
 Times (weekends) 
 Times (day time) 
 Locations GPs/Community* 
 Easy to book 
 Invitation (may need to edit following GP discussion)* 
 Information on the benefits of having an NHS Health Check 
 Access to free lifestyle support following the NHS Health Check 
 Add from list 
 Other -free text box 

 
Please go to section C 

Q5. How did you feel about your overall experience of and NHS Health 
Check? 

 Very Happy 
 Happy 
 Neither happy/unhappy 
 Unhappy 
 Very unhappy 

Please tell us why? - optional 
…………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Page 58

Agenda Item 7



Page 29 of 40 

 

Q6. How did you feel about the advice you received during your NHS 
Health Check? 

 Very Happy 
 Happy 
 Neither happy/unhappy 
 Unhappy 
 Very unhappy 

Please tell us why? -  optional 
…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Q7. What can we do in Sefton to improve NHS Health Checks? (Tick all 
that apply)  

 Weekend appointments 
 Evening appointments 
 Invitations 
 More in-depth health check and support 
 Access to free lifestyle support 
 Access to free community activities 
 Carried out within GP practice 
 Carried out in community venues 
 Other suggestions – Please state 

……………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Q8. Did you make changes to your lifestyle following your health check? 
(tick all that apply) 

 Yes 
 No 

Can you tell us the change(s) you made? 

 Improved diet 
 Increased physical activity 
 Joined a gym/sport club/activity 
 Lost weight 

Page 59

Agenda Item 7



Page 30 of 40 

 

 Accessed Stop Smoking Services 
 Accessed weight management services 
 Accessed national diabetes prevention programme 
 Reduced alcohol intake 
 Stopped Smoking 
 Linked up with a community group 
 Referral to my GP - might need to explain what this means? 
 Other 

…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………… 
Please go to section C 

  

Page 60

Agenda Item 7



Page 31 of 40 

 

Section C 

Stop Smoking Service 
Sefton’s specialist stop smoking services is part of Sefton’s Living Well Service 
(LWS) and is available to all ages of Sefton residents. Sefton’s stop smoking service 
is available to provides tailored advice and support for those people who wish to give 
up smoking or using e-cigarettes. The service uses local community settings to 
deliver face to face support on an individual or group basis.  Service users can also 
access the service via a telephone helpline if it is more appropriate. 

The service has been designed to be flexible and accessible, offering packages of 
support that are tailored to individual.  Advice is provided in a range of community 
settings, can be face to face, in groups, online chat or over the phone. 

Q1. Which statement best describes you? 

 I smoke and do not wish to give up 
 I smoke but would like to give up 
 I used to smoke 
 I am a social smoker 
 I use e-cigarettes 
 I have never smoked (Go to section D) 

Q.1 What barriers are there for you accessing the service? (Tick all that 
apply) 

 Time of appointments 
 Venue of appointments  
 Stigma (by stigma we mean a person being labelled or seen in a negative way) 
 Did not know support was available  
 Unsure of the type of support provided 
 Limited travel to sessions 
 Other 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Please go to section D 
  

Page 61

Agenda Item 7



Page 32 of 40 

 

Section D 

Some Questions About You. 

These questions are optional, you do not have to answer 

them.  All this information is private.  We bring together the 

answers. This information will not be able to tell us who you 

are, but it will help us to understand if we are missing people 

out. 

Can you provide us with the first part of your postcode  

How old are you? 

Under 18.   18 – 29 

30 – 39.     40 – 49 

50 – 59.    60 – 69 

70 – 79.    80 – 84 

85+    Prefer not to say 

2. Gender. 

Male. 

Female. 

Prefer not to say. 

People who are planning to, started to, or have changed 

their sex are protected by the Equalities Act.  

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

Page 62

Agenda Item 7



Page 33 of 40 

 

3. Are you planning to, started to, or have changed your sex?  

This is called gender reassignment. 

Yes. 

No. 

Prefer not to say. 

3a If you answered Yes to question 3. 

Do you currently live as the sex you were given when you 

were born? 

Yes. 

No. 

Prefer not to say. 

3b If you do not live as the sex you were given at birth, are 

you? 

Transgender. 

Nonbinary. 

I identify differently. 

I prefer not to say. 

4. Relationships - How would you describe your sexual 

orientation? 

Heterosexual or straight. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



Page 34 of 40 

 

Gay. 

Lesbian. 

Bisexual. 

Prefer not to say. 

I identify differently. 

Please tell us how you identify. 

5. Disability - Do you have any of the following? 

Physical Impairment. 

Visual Impairment. 

Learning difficulty. 

Hearing Impairment / Deaf. 

Learning Disabilities. 

Long term illness that affects your daily life. 

Autism Spectrum Condition. 

Dementia. 

Mental Health Condition. 

Prefer not to say. 

If you have Cancer, diabetes, or HIV this is seen as a disability 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 64

Agenda Item 7



Page 35 of 40 

 

under the Equalities Law.   

Or you have selected any of the boxes in question 5 (above). 

6. Do you think of yourself as disabled? 

Yes. 

No. 

Prefer not to say. 

7. What is your religion or belief? 

No religion or belief. 

Christian. 

Hindu. 

Muslim. 

Jewish. 

Sikh. 

Prefer not to say. 

Other.  Please tell us. 

8. Race and ethnicity - do you identify as:  

White. 

English, Welsh, Scottish, Northern Irish, British. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 65

Agenda Item 7



Page 36 of 40 

 

Irish. 

Gypsy or Irish Traveller. 

Roma. 

Polish 

Portuguese. 

Latvian. 

Other White Background.  Please tell us. 

Mixed or Multiple ethnic groups. 

White and Black Carribean. 

White and Black African. 

White and Asian. 

Other Mixed or Multiple ethnic background. 

Asian or Asian British. 

Indian. 

Bangladeshi. 

Pakistani. 

Black. 

Chinese. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 66

Agenda Item 7



Page 37 of 40 

 

Other Asian background.  Please tell us. 

Black or Black British. 

African. 

Caribbean. 

British. 

Asian. 

Other Black Background.  Please tell us. 

 Other Ethnic Group. 

Arab.  Another ethnic group. Please tell us.  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 67

Agenda Item 7



Page 38 of 40 

 

Annex 3  

Service User Sefton Integrated Wellness 
Service 

Sefton’s Integrated Wellness Service ‘Living Well Sefton’ The service contributes to 
the aims of the Council priorities of mental health, reducing obesity and overweight 
and building community resourcefulness. We want to help people who live in Sefton 
to make positive lifestyle changes. We want to offer practical support on a range of 
topics including  

• Stopping smoking 
• Sensible drinking 
• Being more active 

• Being a healthy weight 
• Reducing stress 
• Feeling good about yourself and about your life 
• Increasing physical activity 

We want to do this in a number of ways as we know that different people will want 
different types of help. 

This service will have a central place for all healthy lifestyle information so people 
can get the information they need to change their lifestyle be this over the phone, 
online or be directed to a programme/group or class to help people make changes. 

This central place will help people to identify the changes a person wants to make to 
improve their health and help people to make these entire changes, not just one such 
as losing weight and stopping smoking. 

Stakeholder 

Q1. Do you or your organisation refer into the Service? 

 Yes (please go to Q2) 
 No (please go to Q3) 

If no, please explain why 

Page 68

Agenda Item 7



Page 39 of 40 

 

…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Q. 2 Would you benefit from receiving updates on the progress of referred 
service users? 

 Yes 
 No 

If yes, please explain the preferred format and frequency for the updates 
…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Q3. Do you find the service easy to access? 

 Yes 
 No 

If no, please explain why 
…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Q4. Did you find the service helpful? 

 Yes 
 No 

If no, please explain why 
…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Q5. Is there anything you valued? 

 Yes 
 No 

If no, please explain why 
…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Page 69

Agenda Item 7



Page 40 of 40 

 

Q 6. Is there anything you would improve about the service? 

 Yes 
 No 
 If yes, please explain what 

…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
End of survey  

Page 70

Agenda Item 7



 

Interim Equality Analysis Report  

Details of proposal: 

Sefton Integrated Wellness Service ‘Living Well Sefton – 
Community. 

Ramifications of Proposal: 

The Consultation may reveal stark differences in service provision 
for certain groups and other protected characteristics. 

The Consultation may reveal levels of health need, which are 
more severe and complex than expected due to huge societal 
changes since the previous commission i.e., due to Covid-19, cost-
of-living crisis. 

The Consultation may raise expectations on future service delivery 
that may not be possible to meet certain needs. 

Are there any protected characteristics that will be 
disproportionally affected in comparison to others? 

The Equality Act 2010 is clear that there are specific characteristics 
that are intrinsic to an individual against which it would be easy to 
discriminate. Section 149 (the Public Sector Equality Duty) lists the 
characteristics known as ‘protected characteristics’ against which 
we must test for discrimination. These characteristics are 
gender/sex, race/ethnicity, religion and belief, marriage & civil 
partnership, sexual orientation, age, gender reassignment, 
pregnancy and maternity and disability. 

In Sefton we have a strong commitment to promoting equality, 
tackling disadvantage, and improving the health and wellbeing 
of our residents.  

Consultation: 

Overview (why the consultation is taking place) 
The current 5-year commissioned Sefton Integrated Wellness 
Service ‘Living Well Sefton - Community’ is due for renewal / 

Page 71

Agenda Item 7



 

recommission as the current contract comes to an end in March 
2024. 

The EIA is connected to the recommission of the service to ensure 
the required consultation with service users and further afield is 
fully met to ensure appropriate data and outcomes, to help 
shape the future LWS service. 

The EIA should ensure there is equal and fair representation from 
those with ‘protected characteristics’ and enable officers to deal 
with any potential barriers. 

We need to ensure we are delivering the ‘right service’ in the 
‘right place’. 

Background  
Sefton’s Integrated Wellness Service ‘Living Well Sefton’ (LWS) is an 
essential part of the health improvement system. The purpose of 
the service is to support service users to identify needs early and 
build resilience, whilst reducing health inequalities. 

LWS has 3 core strands, which include 2 specialist components 
(Smokefree Sefton and Active Sefton) and a community 
component, ‘LWS Community’. The scope of this specification 
covers LWS Community only but describes the aligned and 
integrated relationship with the specialist components, to provide 
a seamless health improvement offer for Sefton residents. 
Separate specifications have been developed for the specialist 
areas. LWS Community requires a provider who will ensure 
leadership, co-ordination and delivery of community interventions. 
Specific interventions include health mentors providing 
motivational support to achieve behaviour change, community 
health checks, community champions, weight management, 
financial inclusion. 

Aims of the Consultation  
The purpose of the consultation is to: 

• To understand the changing needs of Sefton’s residents, 
while considering the Covid-19 pandemic and the cost-of-
living crisis and the ongoing impact on some of Sefton’s most 
deprived communities. 

Page 72

Agenda Item 7



 

• To understand the local picture and trends, for example, 
‘vaping’ and any other new emerging patterns. 

• To understand the if there are any emerging gaps in service 
and to challenge these. 

To ensure there is synergy and a strong partnership involving the 
provider of the adults ‘service offer’ (currently LWS) and the offer 
and service provided for children and young people i.e., 
Children’s Integrated Wellness Service. 

Objectives of the Consultation  
What is hoped to be achieved by undertaking the consultation? 

• To ensure the new recommissioned service is one that can 
deliver on key priorities and health needs for adults in Sefton. 

• Receive survey feedback from current and previous service 
users, provider staff and non-service users to help shape 
future substance use services in Sefton. 

• To ensure the views of those who participate are used to 
help shape the future service. 

To use influences such as the Obesity Task and Finish Group, to 
ensure a holistic approach is considered by involving strategic 
partners, including housing, planning and others. 

Who will be affected by the Consultation? 

1. Service Provider: current service provider staff i.e., LWS will be 
affected 

• Staff will be expected to engage in the Consultation survey 
to provide invaluable feedback to shape the development 
of the service. 

2. Service users (previous and current service users):  

• Previous and current service users will be contacted to 
participate in the consultation which will take place via focus 
group, survey or telephone interview. 

Page 73

Agenda Item 7



 

3. Non- Service Users: Workshops and meetings targeting groups 
who do not usually engage with services. This will be done by 
working with organisations that offer support to such individuals 
such as Peoples first, voluntary, community and faith sector 
organisations and Sefton’s Partnership for Older Citizens. This 
approach will allow for the consultation to consider the views of 
specific groups of people, for example those with a learning 
disability. 

4. Stakeholders: Workshops and individual meetings will be held 
with a range of partners in order to gain their insight on the 
commissioning and delivery of the service ensuring that services 
key stakeholders are involved in the long term. 

What are the arrangements in place to review the 
evidence?  
The Public Health Team will review and collate the survey data 
(quantitative, qualitative, and anecdotal) during the summer and 
will report back to the consultation panel in Autumn 2023. Couple 
of weeks after closing date, complete the stakeholder 
engagement report, consultation panel feedback and evaluation 
report. 

Why have we chosen to consult with the chosen groups? 

• First-hand experience of the service users who have 
accessed services 

• Professional expertise of specialised staff working with service 
users 

• Additional, community insight into issues that may be 
affecting Sefton’s residents/community 

• To gain an understanding of people’s knowledge of 
available services in Sefton 

• To understand if there are gaps in services 

Identified Impacts of the Consultation current and 
previous service users.  
The Consultation Team have taken into consideration the 
sensitivity of the nature of the consultation in account of the cost-
of-living crisis and the impacts of Covid e.g., issues concerning 

Page 74

Agenda Item 7



 

agoraphobia and mental health, and follow-up support will be 
offered to all groups/people who participate. 

Who is the lead department and who else is involved? i.e., 
stakeholders / other departments/ organisations. 
The lead department carrying out the consultation is Sefton Public 
Health, with the support of the current service provider: 

• Living Well Sefton 

Partners and stakeholders who are also expected to support the 
Consultation i.e., dissemination of the survey and include: 

• Healthy Living Centres i.e., Brighter Living Partnership, 
Netherton Feelgood Factory and May Logan Centre 

• Also, Citizen’s Advice Bureau, Smokefree Sefton, Carers 
Centre and Active Sefton 

• Primary Care practitioners, including GPs 
• Family Wellbeing Staff 
• Social workers 
• Voluntary, Community and Faith sector partners 
• Mersey Care Foundation Trust 
• Secondary care partners where appropriate, e.g. clinical 

obesity services 
• Education partners, including colleges to ensure the voices 

of young adults are captured 
• Carers Centre 
• Career Connect 
• Probation Services 
• Housing Partners 

Public Health are grateful also for the support of Sefton CVS and its 
collaboration with the VCF sector to encourage non-service users 
to complete the Survey. 

Potential barriers to engage service users and people in 
the consultation. 
The current cost of living crisis may impact on people’s (service 
user and non-service user) interest, involvement, and capacity to 
engage in the consultation i.e., the health consequence of the 
current poverty situation may be so detrimental that previous 
service users and non-service users may feel unable to engage.  

Page 75

Agenda Item 7



 

Although, the consultation is not available to all Sefton residents, 
to counterbalance any barriers to people accessing the survey, 
Sefton CVS will disseminate the survey to its VCF partners/contacts 
to help capture feedback from marginalised people/groups in 
Sefton. 

Sefton has a stark difference in health inequalities in certain wards, 
and it is expected there could be a low uptake in the consultation 
in wards where inequalities are greatest. Same as stated above, 
the support of Sefton CVS will be imperative in engaging with the 
VCF sector. 

Mitigation 
To ensure there is appropriate representation and inclusivity, the 
two-week consultation will involve: 

• e-consult online surveys for service providers/staff, service 
users and stakeholders  

• Focus groups for service providers/staff and service users  
• Stakeholder meetings including primary care   
• E-bulletins  
• Internal workshops (for the wider Public Health team)  
• One-to-one interviews/meetings with service providers  

The consultation will also target non-service users, for example, the 
voluntary, community and faith sector and adults in community 
settings. 

Why is the consultation important? 
The Integrated Wellness Service Living Well Sefton consultation is 
important to - 

• Shape future health and well-being services 
• To understand who is using the service(s) 
• To understand those who are not using the service and they 

reasons why 
• To build upon the partner work to create a clearer synergy 

with LWS and the  Children’s Integrated Wellness Service 
(Happy N Healthy Sefton). 

• To understand emerging trends with the target population 
and to understand more fully the effect of the Covid-19 
pandemic and the cost-of-living crisis 

Page 76

Agenda Item 7



 

• To listen to people to ensure the recommissioned service 
delivers effective provision in response to previous funding 
restraints and uncertain funding in the future. 

 Is there evidence that the Public Sector Equality Duties 
will be met? 
The Equality Act 2010 requires that those subject to the Equality 
Duty must, in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to 
the need to: 

1. Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and 
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act. 

2. Advance equality of opportunity between people who share 
a protected characteristic and those who do not. 

3. Foster good relations between people who share a 
protected characteristic and those who do not. 

The Act explains that having due regard for advancing equality 
involves: 

• Removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people 
due to their protected characteristics. 

• Taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected 
groups where these are different from the needs of other 
people. 

• Encouraging people from protected groups to participate in 
public life or in other activities where their participation is 
disproportionately low. 

What actions will follow if proposal accepted by cabinet & 
Council? 

Include details of any mitigating action and ongoing monitoring 
to address any of the equality impacts highlighted above 

The following actions are proposed: 

• To undertake the consultation over a 2-month period during 
May and June.  

• To review, collate and evaluate the data collated post the 
consultation, in July and August, this will be done by the 
Public Health Team. 

Page 77

Agenda Item 7



 

• To review the EIA, post the consultation taking place, to 
understand if the EIA was compatible with the consultation 
design and delivery, and to learn lessons and any possible 
mistakes made. 

• To take a pro-active approach with stakeholders to ensure 
they contribute to the dissemination of the survey, 
particularly to those groups identified with protected 
characteristics.  

To review the EIA when further consultation is undertaken with the 
recommissioned service. 

Include details of any mitigating action and ongoing 
monitoring to address any of the equality impacts 
highlighted above. 

Protected Characteristics and the Identification of 
Potential Issues/Barriers: 

Protected 
Characteristic 

Positive 
Impact 

Negative 
Impact  

Reasons for the positive impact or potential 
negative impact 

Age yes  The consultation is broad but focused 
and it will involve current service 
users, non-service users and staff. 
The wider consultation will invite non-
service users and the VCF to 
participate. The consultation should 
provide an opportunity for people to 
provide important information 
regarding the existing service but also 
how to shape future service provision. 
Service needs to meet needs across 
the life course however, access and 
service requirements change with 
age. 
Mitigation: 

• Ensure that the needs of the 
emerging younger adult age 
group who are using the service 
are considered through offering 
a variety of intervention that 

Page 78

Agenda Item 7



 

support the physical, social, and 
mental health needs of all the 
service users. 

• For older persons who could be 
potentially excluded from the 
wider-stakeholder services, the 
support of SCVS to spread the 
‘net-wider’ to VCF groups is 
needed. 

• Utilise relevant 
groups/organisations to gain 
views across the life course. 

• Utilising venues across the 
borough at various times to 
undertake engagement to 
ensure views across the life 
course are gained. 

• For older people engagement 
utilise groups such as Sefton 
Partnership for Older Citizens, 
Sefton 

• Opera, Sefton Pension Advisory 
Centre to cascade information 
and surveys. 

• Monitor responses against 
census data for Sefton to 
identify if views are 
underrepresented. 

Utilise engagement activity to ensure 
future service meets needs based on 
findings 

Disability   There may be barriers in terms of 
disabled people engaging in the 
consultation. Since Covid-19, the 
health issues may have worsened 
and may prevent people taking part. 
1. The consultation exercise is 
available in a variety of formats and 
should therefore be inclusive: 

• Easy to Read surveys. 
• Telephone Interview. 

Page 79

Agenda Item 7



 

• Survey. 
• However, if there is an identified 

barriers in terms of disability, the 
consultation will be bespoke. 

2. In terms of service delivery, 
hopefully, the survey results will reveal 
if there are any gaps in the service for 
people with disabilities and will be 
addressed going forward. 
Improved self-care information and 
targeting those with long term 
conditions will mean engagement 
with many people who have a 
physical or mental disability. 
Mitigation: 

• Ensure venues used for focus 
groups are accessible to all  

• Differentiation of materials such 
as easy read versions for people 
with a learning disability, 
Targeting learning disability 
groups through organisations 
such as people first 

• Utilise different formats to gain 
views, face to face meetings 
and focus groups, online 
surveys, paper surveys. Surveys 
to be available in alternative 
formats when required   

• Monitor responses against 
census data for Sefton to 
identify if views are 
underrepresented.  

• Utilise engagement activity to 
ensure future service meets 
needs based on findings 

Gender Reassignment/ 
Transgender 

  No evidence to suggest a negative 
impact. 
All service users should be respected 
without discrimination in the service 

Page 80

Agenda Item 7



 

and during consultation and 
engagement activity. 
Understanding of any additional 
health/service needs 
Mitigation: 

• Monitor responses in relation to 
complaints and compliments. 

• Ensure the service policies are 
compliant. 

• Utilise Sefton CVS forums and 
other community groups to gain 
engagement. 

• Monitor responses against 
census data for Sefton to 
identify if views are 
underrepresented. 

• Utilise engagement activity to 
ensure future service meets 
needs based on findings. 

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership 

 

  The service is accessible to all Sefton 
residents without discrimination. 
 Mitigation: N/A 
No evidence to suggest a negative 
impact. 

Pregnancy and 
Maternity 

  Understanding of any additional 
health/service needs   
All service users should be respected 
without discrimination in the service. 
0-19 staff will have the opportunity to 
take part in the consultation. 
The consultation may reveal gaps in 
service provision for women and 
partners accessing services during 
pregnancy, which may have been 
exacerbated during the Covid-19 
pandemic 
Pregnancy and maternity services 
may not view the consultation as a 
priority if they have an already 
unrealistic workload. 
Mitigation: 

Page 81

Agenda Item 7



 

• Engage with forums such as 
Maternity Voices Partnership, 
maternity liaison committee and 
other community groups to gain 
engagement. 

• Monitor responses against 
census data for Sefton to 
identify if views are 
underrepresented. 

• Utilise engagement activity to 
ensure future service meets 
needs based on findings 

Race   The Consultation could have a 
positive impact if the BAME 
community is encouraged to 
participate effectively via Sefton CVS 
and other stakeholders. However, if 
there is a lack of representation this 
could hinder the shape of future 
services and could worsen the 
problem in these communities. 
Due to the changing demographics 
of Sefton in some areas/wards, any 
data and information can become 
quickly outdated and may not be 
relevant to some sections of the 
community. There may be some 
sections in the BAME community e.g., 
asylum seekers who are not willing to 
discuss health needs and service 
provision. 
Awareness is needed of any 
language barriers to accessing 
services and lifestyle information to 
support service planning. 
 Mitigation: 

• Monitor responses against 
substance misuse population 
data for Sefton to identify if 
views are underrepresented. 

Page 82

Agenda Item 7



 

• Ensure information can be 
communicated effectively 
where English is not a language 
that is understand. 

• The consultation dates have 
been chosen to ensure they do 
not fall on any cultural or 
religious holidays in the 
calendar. 

• Utilise CVS forums to ensure 
engagement across different 
ethnic groups. 

• Surveys to be available in 
alternative formats when 
required using language and 
translation services. 

• Utilise engagement activity to 
ensure future service meets 
needs based on findings. 

Religion or Belief   The consultation provides an 
opportunity for Faith groups i.e., VCF 
sector, to provide feedback on 
services that they may not be 
engaged with but their awareness 
and knowledge about what is 
available in Sefton will be 
strengthened. 
The Consultation does not fall on any 
religious or faith holidays. 
The Consultation results may provide 
a more current insight into the needs 
of Faith groups. 
There is a potential reluctance to 
access health services according to 
religion or beliefs.  Understanding of 
any additional health/service needs. 
Religion or beliefs respected without 
discrimination in future service and 
during consultation and engagement 
activity. 
Understanding of any additional 
health/service needs   

Page 83

Agenda Item 7



 

Mitigation: 

• Monitor responses against 
population data where religion 
is stated for Sefton to identify if 
views are underrepresented. 

• Utilise Sefton CVS forums and 
other community groups to gain 
engagement   

• Utilise engagement activity to 
ensure future service meets 
needs based on findings  

Sex   The LWS service is available to all 
Sefton residents over the age of 18yrs. 
Health needs can differ, and risks and 
vulnerabilities of service users may be 
different. Women have longer life 
expectancies but years in poor 
health are longer. Men have a 
shorter life expectancy compared to 
women and there is large variation 
among men living in the borough. 
Mitigation: 

• Monitor uptake by sex utilising 
service data to ensure the 
service remains relevant. 

Ensure the service has a relevant up 
to date policies.  

• Consultation activity to monitor 
uptake by gender, utilise 
different organisations and 
settings to ensure engagement 
from both males and females. 

Monitor responses against census 
data for Sefton to identify if views are 
underrepresented. 
Utilise engagement activity to ensure 
future service meets needs based on 
findings 

Page 84

Agenda Item 7



 

Sexual Orientation   All service users to be respected 
without discrimination in the service. 
Understanding of any additional 
health/service needs 
Mitigation: 

• Monitor responses in relation to 
complaints and compliments 

• Ensure the service policies are 
compliant. 

• Utilise Sefton CVS forums and 
other community groups to gain 
engagement. 

• Monitor responses against 
census data for Sefton to 
identify if views are 
underrepresented. 

• Utilise engagement activity to 
ensure future service meets 
needs based on findings. 

Care Experienced 

 

  The Consultation could have a 
positive impact if the carer is 
encouraged to participate 
effectively via the Sefton Social Care 
Team, Sefton Carers and other 
stakeholders. 
There may be barriers in terms of 
carers engaging in the consultation. 
Since Covid-19, the health issues may 
have worsened and may prevent 
people taking part. 
Mitigation: 

• Utilise different formats to gain 
views, face to face meetings 
and focus groups, online 
surveys, paper surveys. Surveys 
to be available in alternative 
formats when required. 

• Utilise Sefton Carers forums and 
other stakeholders to gain 
engagement. 

Page 85

Agenda Item 7



 

• Ensure venues used for focus 
groups are accessible to all. 

• The consultation exercise is 
available in a variety of formats 
and should therefore be 
inclusive: 

- Easy to Read surveys 
- Telephone Interview 
- Survey 

However, if there is an identified 
barriers in terms of caring, the 
consultation will be bespoke. 

 

Page 86

Agenda Item 7



Sefton Council. 

Sefton Public Engagement and 

Consultation Panel 

Privacy Notice. 

Sefton Council would like to tell you about our Privacy 

Notice for the consultation activity, in Relation to the 

recommissioning of the Living Well Sefton Service, Sefton 

Stop Smoking Service and Integration of Health Checks.  

This privacy notice is for the Living Well Sefton Service, 

Sefton Stop Smoking Service and Integration of Health 

Checks Consultation.  It will explain what we do with the 

personal information we collect. 

In this questionnaire we will collect information about: 

• IP addresses (this is a computer code to show what 

computer the information comes from). 

• Equality questions. 

What personal information we collect. 

In this consultation we collect 

• IP address. 

• Age. 

• Sexuality. 

• Gender. 

• Disability. 

• Religion. 

• Race or ethnicity. 

Page 87

Agenda Item 7



• The first part of your postcode  

Why we collect and use this information. 

Sefton Council are asking people to have their say about 

recommissioning of the Living Well Sefton Service, Sefton 

Stop Smoking Service and Integration of Health Checks. 

IP addresses that identify computers. 

• The IP addresses are collected to make sure only one 

response per resident is received. 

• Once this is checked the IP address information is 

deleted. 

Personal information. 

• The first part of your postcode. 

Equalities Questions. 

These are collected to show what groups of people are 

responding to the questionnaire. 

This also lets us know if we need to use different ways to 

contact groups of people who are not responding. 

How long we keep your information. 

The IP address will be deleted immediately after the 

checks are done. 

The equalities and postcode information will be kept until 

the information has been looked at and a report written. 

How we use the information and who we share the 

information with. 

The information collected in this questionnaire will only be 

used as numbers in the report.  

Page 88

Agenda Item 7



No information is collected that tells us who you are. 

Storing the information. 

All information is kept safe. 

Sefton Council follows the laws around data protection. 

The laws. 

We need to make sure we  

• Only ask the questions we need to in the 

questionnaire. 

• Ask the equalities questions.   

The law says we must ask and act on this information. 

It helps us to know what groups of people are responding 

to the questionnaire. 

It also helps us to know that we are not missing groups of 

people. 

Confidential. 

Your answers will not tell us who you are. 

The answers will be collected to help us know what 

people think. 

Who will we share this information with? 

Your information will not be shared with any other 

organisations. 

Asking to see your personal information. 

You can ask to see what personal information we keep 

about you.  

Page 89

Agenda Item 7



Be aware there are some rules about why some 

information cannot be shared. 
 

You can refuse to answer any questions in the 

questionnaire. 

If you want to ask to see your personal information you 

can.  Use the Council website to complete a request 

form. 

Or you can call Sefton Council on  

0345 140 0845 

Contacts 

For more information about this privacy notice please 

contact: 

Public Health  

0151 934 3151 

Sefton’s Data Protection Officer 

Ino.information@sefton.gov.uk 

0345 140 0845 

Page 90

Agenda Item 7

https://www.sefton.gov.uk/miscellaneous-pages/privacy-policy.aspx
https://www.sefton.gov.uk/miscellaneous-pages/privacy-policy.aspx
mailto:Ino.information@sefton.gov.uk


 

AGENDA ITEM 8 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 

Date: 10th March 2023  

Title: Public Engagement and Consultation Strategy – Climate Emergency 
Feedback and Evaluation report  

Report of:  Gill Birmingham, Project Officer – Climate & Environment 

gillian.birmingham@sefton.gov.uk 

1. Purpose of the Report 

1.1 To provide feedback on the Climate Change Community Engagement 
Consultation. The consultation aimed to:  

• Receive public feedback on the Council’s Climate Change Emergency 
Plan. 

• Understand the public’s ambition for achieving net-zero. 

• Check if the public agree with the Plan’s priority actions. 

• Find out who is interested in participating in the Council’s Climate 
Change work.  

• Potentially set up a group to regularly focus on Climate Change issues. 

1.2 The Panel have agreed to appraise the Feedback and Evaluation Reports 
in accordance with the standards of public engagement and consultation 
and will consider: - 

• How the activity was carried out. 

• the opinions of the people taking part on how they found the process. 

• The number of people who took part and the costs of the different 
methods of getting them involved. 

• How successful different methods were at getting the views of people 
who are not normally heard, for example, children, young people, and 
people with disabilities. 

• How the results will be fed back to the public. 

• How will the results influence policies and service plans. 

2.      Name of Issue you were Consulting On 

 2.1 In July 2019 Sefton Council declared a Climate Emergency.  

  A commitment was made to reduce emissions and reach net zero 
Council Operations by 2030.  

 2.2 Also in 2019, an ambitious target was set for the Liverpool City Region to 

Page 91

Agenda Item 8

mailto:gillian.birmingham@sefton.gov.uk


 

reach net zero carbon by 2040 or sooner. 

 2.3 A proposal was brought to the Consultation and Engagement Panel on 
15 July 2022, outlining the consultation process to collect views on how 
Climate Change can be tackled.  

 2.4 The purpose of this report is to provide the Engagement and 
Consultation Panel with information relating to the outcome of the 
consultation exercise. The responses provided will help the Council 
understand what the public’s ambition is for achieving net zero and what 
they think the priority actions should be. An Equality Impact Assessment 
(EIA) was completed at the time and is available in the Annexe of the 
document. 

3. The Consultation Process 

 3.1 The public consultation process was conducted from Monday 25 July 
to Friday 30 September 2022 for a period of 10 weeks.  

 3.2 The process involved the gathering of both quantitative and qualitative 
feedback. 

 3.3 The following consultation methods were used:  

  • Public consultation online survey, using the “Your Sefton, Your Say” 
Platform.  

  • 5 public drop-in sessions using different venues in the borough:  

 Bootle Library, L20 3EN 
 Waterloo Community Centre, L22 1RD 
 The Atkinson, PR8 1DB 

 3.4  Posters promoting the events were also put up in each location. 

        3.5      Documents for the consultation were produced in easy read, including the
         survey and Climate Change strategy.  

 3.6 Information relating to the consultation was distributed via the following 
channels:  

 Internal  

 Dedicated Cabinet Member(s) briefing 
 One Council Brief 
 Intranet  
 Yammer  
 Dwayne’s Blog  
 Dwayne’s Teams Hour 

Page 92

Agenda Item 8



 

 External 

 Social Media  
 Consultation Events 
 Sefton Council website – www.sefton.gov.uk 
 My Sefton news – www.mysefton.co.uk  
 Your Sefton, Your Say website  
 Schools via the ‘Big Green Envelope’  
 SYMBOL (Sefton Youth Making Better Opportunities with Leaders) 
 Sefton CVS  

 3.7 The survey consisted of 24 questions (including 12 optional equality 
monitoring questions).  

4. Summary of the Consultation Results 

 4.1 Responses received from 252 individuals. 

 4.2 Respondents ranged in age from under 18 to over 75, with 60% aged 
between 40 and 69.  

 4.3  Despite targeted communications, only 6% of people were aged 29 and 
under. 

 4.4 53% of respondents were female and 6% considered themselves to have 
a disability (Appendix 10c of Consultation Report provides comprehensive 
detail for all equality monitoring questions).  

 4.5 The sample size was not sufficient to enable the analysis to be fully 
representative of the entire population of the borough. Nevertheless, it 
provides a good starting point.  

 4.6 A summary from the quantitative analysis and qualitative feedback is 
  as follows: 

 • Positive comments received “Glad to hear there is a target set!” and “I'm 
delighted to see the council's awareness of climate change and that they 
are taking steps to reduce carbon emissions in their buildings.” 

 • Survey respondents were in support of strong action to reduce the impact 
of Climate Change in Sefton, and many are aware that Sefton Council has 
set a target to be net zero carbon by 2030.  

 • 8 in 10 people are aware of how they can reduce the amount of carbon 
they create.  

 • A significant number of respondents would like the Council to provide them 
with more information on the impact of Climate Change particularly around 
what the Council is doing, how to save energy at home, the coast (habitat 
and sea defences) and current consultations which may impact our 
climate. 

Page 93

Agenda Item 8



 

 • Most respondents (81%) would like to be involved with the Council’s 
Climate Change work in the future, either by accessing information 
online/from a newsletter or taking an active role in the Council’s plans. 

 • Many respondents want the Council to increase public awareness of 
Climate Change, expressing views such as “Would be great to have a 
newsletter to show people what initiatives are going on” and ““It would be 
helpful to know the targets in between now and 2030.” 

 • 73% of people would like the Council to set up a group to regularly focus 
on Climate Change issues. Feedback indicated that the group should 
provide views on Council policies and plans, be ‘green champions’ and 
show others how to act and be involved in acting across Sefton. 

 • Respondents feel that the group should cover topics such as renewable 
energy and heating, waste, transport, clean air and reducing pollution and 
quality of public space. 

 • There is an expectation for the Council to lead by example with a clear 
plan but also engage with the public and encourage individuals and 
organisations to act.  

 4.7  The full Consultation Report provides comprehensive detail of both the 
quantitative findings and qualitative analysis, along with graphical data. 

5. Feedback 

 5.1 A proposed Climate Emergency Engagement Plan has now been 
prepared based on the feedback received in the survey.  

 5.2 The report has been shared with the Climate Change Member Reference 
Group and Climate Emergency Officers Group.  

 5.3 The documents will be published on the “Your Sefton, Your Say” platform. 

 5.4 Findings from the consultation will be circulated to respondents via E-mail 
(if provided), schools via the ‘Big Green Envelope’ newsletter, SYMBOL 
(Sefton Youth Making Better Opportunities with Leaders) and other 
communication channels.  

6. Future engagement 

 6.1 This engagement plan will cover 2023/24. It will be monitored regularly 
and reviewed annually up to 2030.  

Proposed Actions 

1. Develop a dynamic Climate Emergency Communications Strategy. 

2. Produce a dedicated Climate area/noticeboard/microsite. 

3. Design a strong, vibrant Climate logo. The agreed design will be used  

Page 94

Agenda Item 8



 

 consistently across the Council. 

4. Create a Climate Emergency E-mail address/online form, so members of the  
    public can join a mailing list. 

5. Produce a Climate e-newsletter, which will be distributed quarterly. 

6. Create a Climate Emergency Engagement Group/Assembly, to influence  
    and raise awareness in the community while also working with other 

established groups in the borough. 

7. Develop specific campaigns and link in with national events to run through  
   social media platforms, Council website and other outlets. 

8. Improve and extend the Council's online Climate resources, including putting 
web banners on the Council homepage. 

9. Support with communication campaigns focusing on key areas such as 
energy, waste, and transport. 

7. Recommendations 

 7.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel are recommended to 

  a) Note the contents of the report and feedback and evaluation forms 

  b)  Request that lead officers provide the Public Engagement and 
Consultation Team with the results and reports so that they can be 
uploaded onto the Consultation Hub. 

  c) Request that lead officer’s report to a future Panel meeting to update 
the panel as to any additional changes that have occurred as a result 
of the consultation feedback. 

Page 95

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Climate Change Community Engagement 
Consultation Report. 
Feedback from the 2022 Public 
Consultation Exercise. 
February 2023. 
  

Page 97

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Table of Contents. 
1. Introduction. 

2. Background. 

3. Consultation Purpose. 

4. Consultation Methodology. 

5. Survey Respondents. 

6. Summary of Quantitative Analysis. 

7. Summary of Qualitative Analysis. 

8. Conclusions. 

9. Next Steps. 

10. Appendices 

10a. Quantitative Breakdown of Responses 
10b. Qualitative Breakdown of Responses 
10c. Equality Monitoring Responses 
10d. Consultation Poster. 

  

Page 98

Agenda Item 8



 

 

1. Introduction. 
This Consultation Report explains how Sefton Council undertook a public consultation in 
Summer 2022. It was important for people to have their say on how Sefton should respond 
to the climate and ecological emergencies that are happening.  
Everyone living and working in Sefton has a role to play as it transitions to a low carbon 
society. 
The consultation will help the Council understand what the public’s ambition is for achieving 
net zero and what they think the priority actions should be. It is also important to understand 
how the Council can engage and involve the public moving forward, so everyone can work 
together.  
The report will focus on the results and feedback from the consultation and create a pathway 
for future communications.  

2. Background. 
In July 2019 Sefton Council declared a Climate Emergency. A commitment was made to 
reduce emissions and reach net zero Council Operations by 2030, committing to:  

• Make the Council’s activities net-zero carbon by 2030. 

• Ensure that all strategic decisions are in line with a shift to zero carbon by 2030. 

• Achieve 100% clean energy across Sefton Council’s full range of functions by 2030. 
Also in 2019, an ambitious target was set for the Liverpool City Region to reach net zero 
carbon by 2040 or sooner. 
Sefton Council has done a lot of work on how to approach the Climate Emergency. 
However, engagement with the public has been limited due to the Covid pandemic. 
There is support within the Council and from partners to involve the community and build on 
the engagement that has taken place over the last two years (particularly around COP26). 

3. Consultation Purpose. 
The consultation aimed to: 

• Receive public feedback on the Council’s Climate Change Emergency Plan. 
• Understand the public’s ambition for achieving net-zero. 
• Check if the public agree with the Plan’s priority actions. 
• Find out who is interested in participating in the Council’s Climate Change work.  
• Potentially set up a group to regularly focus on Climate Change issues. 

4. Consultation Methodology  
Prior to commencement, a proposal to undertake a consultation was taken to Sefton’s Public 
Engagement and Consultation Panel on Friday 15 July 2022 and subsequently approved. 
The public consultation process was conducted from Monday 25 July to Friday 30 
September 2022 for a period of 10 weeks.  
  

Page 99

Agenda Item 8



 

 

The consultation process involved the gathering of both quantitative and qualitative 
feedback. The following consultation methods were used:  

• Public consultation online survey, using the “Your Sefton, Your Say” Platform. 
• 5 public drop-in sessions using different venues in the area, to encourage residents 

to attend, ask questions and complete the survey in-person.  

Bootle Library, L20 3EN. 
Monday 12th September 1pm till 3pm.  
Thursday 22nd September 11am till 1pm. 

Waterloo Community Centre, L22 1RD. 
Wednesday 14th September 11am till 1pm. 

The Atkinson, PR8 1DB. 
Thursday 15th September 1pm till 3pm. 
Wednesday 21st September 11am till 1pm. 

Posters promoting the events were also put up in each location at the beginning of 
September. The poster included a QR code which took people straight to the 
consultation. (Appendix 10d). 
Information relating to the consultation was distributed via the following channels:  

Internal. 

Dedicated Cabinet Member(s) briefing. 
One Council Brief. 
Intranet.  
Yammer.  
Dwayne’s Blog.  
Dwayne’s Teams Hour. 

External. 

Social Media.  
Consultation Events. 
Sefton Council website – www.sefton.gov.uk. 
My Sefton news – www.mysefton.co.uk.  
Your Sefton, Your Say website.  
Schools via the ‘Big Green Envelope’.  
SYMBOL (Sefton Youth Making Better Opportunities with Leaders). 
Sefton CVS.  

  

Page 100

Agenda Item 8



 

 

The consultation focused on all stakeholders across Sefton, but predominantly residents and 
young people. Channels of communication already exist with schools, businesses and 
community groups in the borough, but less so with residents.  

The survey was high level and consisted of 24 questions (including 12 optional equality 
monitoring questions).  

5. Survey Respondents. 
Responses were received from 252 individuals. 

The respondents ranged in age from under 18 to over 75, with 60% aged between 40 and 
69.  

However, the number of responses from young people was not representative of the 
borough (6% were aged 29 and under), despite targeted communications.  

53% of respondents were female and 6% considered themselves to have a disability.  

73% of respondents classified their ethnicity as English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern Irish/British 
and 23% preferred not to provide an ethnic background or did not respond to the question.  

The sample size was not sufficient to enable our analysis to be fully representative of the  
entire population of the borough. It is expected that those who are concerned about Climate 
Change are more likely to respond. Nevertheless, this is the best data that the Council 
currently has and is a good starting point.  
 
6. Summary of Quantitative Analysis. 
Quantitative analysis means, to measure by quantity rather than quality. It is based on 
describing and interpreting numbers and percentages. The general results were as follows; 

Survey respondents were in support of strong action to reduce the impact of Climate Change 
in Sefton, and many were aware that Sefton Council has set a target to be net zero carbon 
by 2030.  
There is also an awareness that more extreme weather events will happen and a concern it 
will impact them. Although many are aware of how they can reduce the amount of carbon 
they create, which is positive to see.  
A significant number of respondents would like the Council to provide them with more 
information on the impact of Climate Change particularly around what the Council is doing, 
how to save energy at home, the coast (habitat and sea defences) and current consultations 
which may impact our climate. 
It is also pleasing to see that most respondents would like to be involved with the Council’s 
Climate Change work either by accessing information online/from a newsletter or taking an 
active role in the Council’s plans.  

  

Page 101

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Most respondents also recognised that there is much more to do and think that Sefton 
Council should set up a group to regularly focus on Climate Change issues. Feedback from 
the survey indicated that the group should provide views on Council policies and plans, be 
‘green champions’ and show others how to act and be involved in acting across Sefton. 

Respondents feel that the group should cover topics such as renewable energy and heating, 
waste, transport, clean air and reducing pollution and quality of public space. There is an 
expectation for the Council to lead by example with a clear plan but also engage with the 
public and encourage individuals and organisations to act. 

Awareness of Net Zero Target 
Almost half of respondents (47%) are aware that Sefton Council has set a target to be net 
zero carbon by 2030.  

Reducing Carbon  
Just over 8 in 10 people (81%) are aware of how they can reduce the amount of carbon they 
create, with only 8% answering no and 10% not sure.  

Information on Reducing Carbon Footprint 
65% of people completing the survey would like the Council to provide them with more 
information on how to reduce their carbon footprint. 

Weather Impacts 
78% of respondents believe that more extreme weather events such as storms and 
heatwaves will have an impact on them in the future.  

Information about Climate Change  
65% of people would like the Council to provide them with more information on the impact of 
Climate Change and how they can be prepared, with 1 in 4 respondents (25%) answering no 
and 7% not sure.  

Types of Information  
Respondents were asked what type of information they would like to receive by social media 
from the list below. They were able to choose up to 5 options with what the Council is doing 
being the most popular response. 

Top 3 Responses.  
• What the Council is doing (175 responses). 
• How to save energy at home (140). 
• Current consultations which may impact our climate (115). 

  

Page 102

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Other Responses. 
• The coast (habitat and sea defences) (110). 
• Nature and biodiversity information (100). 
• Transport information and suggestions (98). 
• Funding available (96). 
• How to calculate your own carbon impacts (85). 
• Climate and health suggestions (84). 
• Green jobs (53). 

Total responses – 1056.  

Future Involvement..  
Most respondents (81%) would like to be involved with the Council’s Climate Change work in 
the future. 

43% Yes – access information online (126 responses). 

22% Yes – take an active role in the Council’s plans (64). 

16% Yes – access information from a newsletter (47). 

19% No (56). 

63% (159) of people also provided their E-mail address, as they would like to be kept 
informed.  

Climate Change Engagement Group.  
73% of respondents would like the Council to set up a group to regularly focus on Climate 
Change issues, with 15% answering no and 12% not sure. 

Group Priorities. 
Respondents of the survey would like a Climate Change Engagement Group to do the 
following, with providing views on Council policies and plans being the most popular request 
(two answers could be picked).  

Top 3 Responses.  
• Provide views on Council policies and plans (57 responses). 
• Be ‘green champions’ and show others how to act (51). 
• Be involved in acting across Sefton (43). 

Other Responses. 
• Review the actions of groups across Sefton and provide comments (35). 
• Help share climate messages (20). 

Total responses – 206. 

  

Page 103

Agenda Item 8



Topics. 
Respondents were asked what topics the Climate Change Engagement Group should cover 
from the list below. They were able to choose up to 5 options with renewable energy and 
heating (sun and wind) being the most popular response.  

Top 5 Responses. 
• Renewable energy and heating (sun and wind) (151 responses).
• Waste (household and business rubbish) (114).
• Transport, including cycling, walking and public transport (110).
• Clean air and reducing pollution (103).
• Quality of public space, green space (101).

Other Responses. 
• Energy and fuel poverty (100).
• Flood risk and recovery from floods (84).
• Planning and land use (81).
• Ecological emergency and biodiversity (60).
• Improving job skills, education and retraining people into green industries (60).
• The built environment and infrastructure (59).
• Agriculture and food (52).
• Food insecurity (47).
• Water (43).
• How to reduce the impact on businesses (16).

Total responses – 1181. 

7. Summary of Qualitative Analysis.
252 individuals provided responses to the survey and were given the opportunity to offer 
general feedback on the Climate Change agenda. Not all respondents provided a qualitative 
response, but a high number did. 

The responses provided have been analysed and the themes that emerged are summarised 
below:  

Comments.

Respondents were asked if they had any comments regarding what Sefton Council is doing 
about Climate Change, 174 responses were received predominantly around the following: 

Increase public awareness of Climate Change.  
“Would be great to have a newsletter to show people what initiatives are going on in the 
community to become more energy efficient.” 

“It would be good to see more publicity given to Sefton plans.” 

Page 104

Agenda Item 8



 

 

“It would be helpful to know the targets in between now and 2030. Hopefully, this would help 
to not leave everything until the last minute.” 

“Be good if in next year's council tax letters - the council could publish its progress and likely 
% probability of making it by 2030.” 

Deliver on active travel and public transport. 

“Build direct, safe, segregated bike lanes throughout. Prioritise bus and train travel.” 

“Improve safe cycling. Provide more secure cycle storage.” 

“Really affordable public transport, proper cycle provision, educational strategies about 
carbon waste in terms of flying, personal car use . . .” 

“People need to use cars less. Electric car charging should not be subsidized by local or 
central government.” 

Net Zero by 2030 Council Operations target. 

“Glad to hear there is a target set!” 

“I'm delighted to see the council's awareness of climate change and that they are taking 
steps to reduce carbon emissions in their buildings.” 
“The council needs to have more challenging and specific targets in its plan. It also needs to 
be seen as a local champion promoting climate action across its whole area within the public 
and private sectors.” 

Green space concerns. 

“Selling off green spaces and chopping down trees and hedgerows that reduce Co2 and 
provide homes for wildlife and replacing with houses that come with more cars and waste is 
not the way forward.” 

“Taking away green spaces and services that help the community reduce their footprint!” 

“Stop building houses on green belt land, replacing soil with concrete only increases the 
chance of flooding.” 

Recycling service feedback. 

“Encourage more recycling.” 

“Recycling at the tip is good, but I'm not convinced about kerbside mixed Recycling.” 

“Re-introducing food waste collections might help.” 

“Could be doing much more. More recycling and penalties for those who don't. Money raised 
to do more recycling.” 

  

Page 105

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Installation of EV charging points and energy saving measures. 

“Change all fleet vehicles to electric.” 

“It would be nice to see investment in Solar panels and Electric car charging points . . .” 

“There is very little electric charge points also, they is none in any petrol stations that I’m 
aware of and on any lamp posts. So doesn’t encourage people to use electric cars.” 

“Grants for air pumps/solar for homes in Sefton.” 

“Install renewable energy generating equipment on all public buildings.”  

Future Involvement. 
Respondents were asked if they had any comments regarding being involved with the 
Council’s Climate Change work in future. 11 responses were received, 

“Work in collaboration with the nhs and other strategic partners to mitigate/adaption the 
health emergency created by the outcomes of climate change.” 

“Be consulted on them and opinion listened to.” 

“I'd like to be involved with the active travel team.” 

“I really don't think you are going to reach a target audience online in areas where there is 
little interest or knowledge you need workshops.” 

Group Priorities. 
Some respondents provided additional comments on what they think a Climate Change 
Community Engagement Group could do. 70 responses were received, these are highlighted 
below.  

“Help share climate messages.” 

“Provide economic incentives to change lifestyle to environmental sustainable outcomes. 
Decarbonise all SMBC buildings and residents’ homes.” 

“By championing and being at the forefront of change the council could initiate a new way 
towards the future. Leading the North West to a cleaner improved way of living.” 

“Follow the IPCC recommendations. Sign the plant based treaty.” 

“Sefton Council needs focus groups across the boroughs made up of people living in the 
communities . . . Feedback and consultation groups are KEY to communities making better 
informed decisions together.”  

“Group must be more than just consultative but play a genuine role in shaping and delivering 
plans and actions. It should also be drawn from a wide range of residents of Sefton 
including, younger and older people, and diverse groups.” 

  

Page 106

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Topics. 
Feedback was provided regarding other topics the Climate Change Community Engagement 
Group could cover. 20 responses were received and are summarised below. 

“Population growth.” 

“Sustainable Coastal Management.” 

“Protection of specific areas from unnecessary and damaging tree removal.” 

“Health and wellbeing . . .” 

Other Views and Comments. 
At the end of the survey respondents were asked to provide any other views/comments they 
would like the Council to consider. 112 responses were received, some of which are 
highlighted below.  
“Hoping that Sefton Council's plans/strategies and consultations can be converted into 
positive action.” 
“Net zero impacts needs to be included in all SMBC strategies/policy.” 

“I think people need more help and support with recycling and there needs to be a massive 
increase in composting.” 
“All councils need to look at ways to reduce pollution and be more forward thinking to 
prevent and reduce issues occurring in the future.” 
“Alternative energy for new builds, housing and commercial Electric charging points - 
especially of on street residential parking.” 
“I think a focus group should be proactive rather than reactive, not be tied down in red tape, 
encourage community action.” 
“People need the council to direct and support them like never before. Many people do not 
know what to do or are not aware of the problem.” 

8. Conclusions. 
Bringing all the findings together from the consultation, there are 5 key takeaways which 
stand out:  

• There is a need for the Council to provide more information on how individuals can 
reduce their carbon footprint.  

• A demand for more information particularly relating to what the Council is doing, how 
to save energy at home and current consultations which may impact our climate 
(most popular responses). 

• There is a desire for people to work with the Council on this important agenda. 
• Support for the Council to create a Climate Change Community Engagement Group. 
• Encouragement for the following areas to be covered particularly in the engagement 

group - renewable energy, waste, transport, clean air and reducing pollution and 
quality of public space (most popular responses). 

Page 107

Agenda Item 8



 

 

9. Next Steps 
The responses and comments received through the consultation have been used to form a 
Climate Emergency Engagement Plan. The engagement plan will cover 2023/24. It will be 
monitored regularly and reviewed annually up to 2030. 

Every resident and organisation within the borough has a part to play in tackling Climate 
Change. As such the target audience of the plan will be wide-ranging in scope and involve 
public, private and voluntary sector stakeholders via a number of engagement methods.  

  

Page 108

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Appendix 10a  
Quantitative Breakdown of Responses. 

1. Awareness of Net Zero Target. 
Did you know Sefton Council has set a target to be net zero carbon by 2030?  

There were 251 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 

Yes 120 47.62% 

No 122 48.41% 

Not sure 9 3.57% 

Not Answered 1 0.40% 

 

  

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140

Not Answered

Not sure

No

Yes

Page 109

Agenda Item 8



 

 

2. Reducing Carbon. 

Are you aware of how you can reduce the amount of carbon you create, also known as your 
carbon footprint? 
There were 250 responses to this part of the question. 

 

3. Information on Reducing Carbon Footprint. 

Would you like the Council to provide you with more information on how to reduce your 
carbon footprint? 
There were 251 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 
Yes 165 65.48% 
No 72 28.57% 
Not sure 14 5.56% 
Not Answered 1 0.40% 

 
  

0 50 100 150 200 250

Not Answered

Not sure

No

Yes

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180

Not Answered

Not sure

No

Yes

Option Total Percent 

Yes 205 81.35% 

No 20 7.94% 

Not sure 25 9.92% 

Not Answered 2 0.79% 

Page 110

Agenda Item 8



 

 

4. Weather Impacts. 

In future we expect more extreme weather events such as storms and heatwaves. Will this 
change in climate impact you? 

There were 249 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 

Yes 198 78.57% 

No 24 9.52% 

Not sure 27 10.71% 

Not Answered 3 1.19% 

6. Information about Climate Change. 

Would you like the Council to provide you with more information on the impact of climate 
change and how you can be prepared?  

There were 249 responses to this part of the question. 

 

 

0 50 100 150 200 250

Not Answered

Not sure

No

Yes

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180

Not Answered

Not sure

No

Yes

Page 111

Agenda Item 8



 

 

 

7. Type of Information. 

What type of information would you want to receive by social media? 

There were 227 responses to this part of the question. 

 

  

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180 200

Not Answered

Funding available

Current consultations which may impact o…

Transport information & suggestions

The coast (habitat and sea defences)

Nature and biodiversity information

Climate and health suggestions

Green jobs

How to save energy at home

What the Council is doing

How to calculate your own carbon impacts

Option Total Percent 

Yes 166 65.87% 

No 64 25.40% 

Not sure 19 7.54% 

Not Answered 3 1.19% 

Page 112

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Option Total Percent 

How to calculate your own carbon impacts 85 33.73% 

What the Council is doing 175 69.44% 

How to save energy at home 140 55.56% 

Green jobs 53 21.03% 

Climate and health suggestions 84 33.33% 

Nature and biodiversity information 100 39.68% 

The coast (habitat and sea defences) 110 43.65% 

Transport information & suggestions 98 38.89% 

Current consultations which may impact our climate 115 45.63% 

Funding available 96 38.10% 

Not Answered 25 9.92% 

8. Future Involvement. 

Would you like to be involved with the Council’s climate change work in the future?  

There were 245 responses to this part of the question. 

 

  

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140

Not Answered

Yes – take an active role in the Council…

Yes – access information from a newslett…

Yes – access information online

No

Page 113

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Option Total Percent 

No 56 22.22% 

Yes – access information online 126 50.00% 

Yes – access information from a newsletter 47 18.65% 

Yes – take an active role in the Council’s plans 64 25.40% 

Not Answered 7 2.78% 

9. Climate Change Community Engagement Group. 

Do you think that Sefton Council should set up a group to regularly focus on 
climate change issues? 

There were 252 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 

Yes 185 73.41% 

No 38 15.08% 

Not sure 29 11.51% 

Not Answered 0 0.00% 

  

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180 200

Not sure

No

Yes

Page 114

Agenda Item 8



 

 

10. Group Priorities. 

What do you think the group should do? 

There were 206 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 

Provide views on Council policies and plans. 57 22.62% 

Help share climate messages. 20 7.94% 

Be ‘green champions’ and show others how to act. 51 20.24% 

Review the actions of groups across Sefton and provide 
comments. 

35 13.89% 

Be involved in acting across Sefton 43 17.06% 

Not Answered 46 18.25% 

  

0 10 20 30 40 50 60

Not Answered

Be involved in acting across Sefton

Review the actions of groups across Seft
on and provide comments.

Be ‘green champions’ and show others how
to act.

Help share climate messages.

Provide views on Council policies and pl
ans.

Page 115

Agenda Item 8



 

 

11. Topics. 

What topics should the group cover? 

There were 213 responses to this part of the question. 

 

  

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160

Not Answered

Quality of public space, green space

Flood risk and recovery from floods

Clean air and reducing pollution

Improving job skills, education and retr
aining people into green industries

Food insecurity

Ecological emergency and biodiversity

How to reduce the impact on businesses

Planning and Land Use

Water

Waste (household and business rubbish)

Agriculture and food

Transport- including cycling, walking an
d public transport

The Built Environment and infrastructure

Energy and fuel poverty

Renewable energy and heating (sun and wi
nd)

Page 116

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Option Total Percent 

Renewable energy and heating (sun and wind) 151 59.92% 

Energy and fuel poverty 100 39.68% 

The Built Environment and infrastructure 59 23.41% 

Transport- including cycling, walking and public transport 110 43.65% 

Agriculture and food 52 20.63% 

Waste (household and business rubbish) 114 45.24% 

Water 43 17.06% 

Planning and Land Use 81 32.14% 

How to reduce the impact on businesses 16 6.35% 

Ecological emergency and biodiversity 60 23.81% 

Food insecurity 47 18.65% 

Improving job skills, education and retraining people into 
green industries 

60 23.81% 

Clean air and reducing pollution 103 40.87% 

Flood risk and recovery from floods 84 33.33% 

Quality of public space, green space 101 40.08% 

Not Answered 39 15.48% 

  

Page 117

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Appendix 10b  

Qualitative Breakdown of Responses. 
5. Comments. 

Please let us know of any comments you have on what Sefton Council is doing about 
Climate Change. 

There were 174 responses to this part of the question. 

Comments.xlsx

 

8. Future Involvement. 

Would you like to be involved with the Council’s climate change work in the future? 

Other (please tell us). 

There were 11 responses to this part of the question. 

FutureInvolvement.
xlsx  

10. Group Priorities. 

What do you think the group should do?  

There were 70 responses to this part of the question. 

GroupPriorities.xlsx

  
11.Topics.  
What topics should the group cover? Other (please tell us) 

Topics.xlsx   

There were 20 responses to this part of the question. 
  

Page 118

Agenda Item 8



 

 

12. Other Views and Comments. 

Please provide any other views/comments you would like the Council to consider in the box 
below. 

There were 112 responses to this part of the question. 

OtherViews+Comm
ents.xlsx  

Appendix 10c. 

Equality Monitoring Responses. 

13. Consent. 
Do you give agree or disagree to provide your details, in accordance with the Privacy 
Notice? 

There were 245 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 

Agree 184 73.02% 

Disagree 61 24.21% 

Not Answered 7 2.78% 

  

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180 200

Not Answered

Disagree

Agree

Page 119

Agenda Item 8



 

 

14. E-mail Address. 
If you want to be kept informed about the Council’s Climate Change Community 
Engagement Plan, please leave your email address in the box below. 
There were 159 responses to this part of the question – individual E-mail addresses. 

15. Age. 
How old are you? 
There were 231 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 

Under 18 4 1.59% 

18 - 29 12 4.76% 

30 - 39 30 11.90% 

40 - 49 37 14.68% 

50 – 59 67 26.59% 

60 - 69 51 20.24% 

70 - 79 13 5.16% 

80 - 84 0 0.00% 

85+ 0 0.00% 

Prefer not to say 17 6.75% 

Not Answered 21 8.33% 

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80

Not Answered

Prefer not to say

70 - 79

60 - 69

50 – 59

40 - 49

30 - 39

18 - 29

Under 18

Page 120

Agenda Item 8



 

 

16. Sex. 

Are you? 

There were 231 responses to this part of the question. 

 
0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160

Not Answered

Prefer not to say

Female

Male

Option Total Percent 

Male 84 33.33% 

Female 134 53.17% 

Prefer not to say 13 5.16% 

Not Answered 21 8.33% 

17. Gender  

People are planning to, started to or have changed their sex are protected by the Equalities 
Law Act. 

Are you planning to, started to or have changed your sex? This is called gender 
reassignment. 

There were 222 responses to this part of the question. 

Page 121

Agenda Item 8



 

 

 

Option Total Percent 

Yes 4 1.59% 

No 201 79.76% 

Prefer not to say 17 6.75% 

Not Answered 30 11.90% 

18. Gender Identity – 1. 

If you answered ‘yes’ to the above, do you currently live as the sex you were given when you 
were born? 

There were 54 responses to this part of the question. 

 

  

0 50 100 150 200 250

Not Answered

Prefer not to say

No

Yes

0 50 100 150 200 250

Not Answered

Prefer not to say

No

Yes

Page 122

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Option Total Percent 

Yes 28 11.11% 

No 5 1.98% 

Prefer not to say 21 8.33% 

Not Answered 198 78.57% 

19. Gender Identity – 2. 

If you do not live as the sex you were given at birth, are you? 

There were 36 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 

Transgender 3 1.19% 

Non-binary 0 0.00% 

I identify differently 3 1.19% 

Prefer not to say 30 11.90% 

Not Answered 216 85.71% 

  

0 50 100 150 200 250

Not Answered

Prefer not to say

I identify differently

Transgender

Page 123

Agenda Item 8



 

 

20. Sexual Orientation. 

How would you describe your sexual orientation? 

There were 203 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 

Heterosexual/straight 165 65.48% 

Lesbian 1 0.40% 

Gay 1 0.40% 

Bisexual 3 1.19% 

Define differently 3 1.19% 

Prefer not to say 30 11.90% 

Not Answered 49 19.44% 

  

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180

Not Answered

Prefer not to say

Define differently

Bisexual

Gay

Lesbian

Heterosexual/straight

Page 124

Agenda Item 8



 

 

21. Disability?  
Do you have any of the following (please tick all that apply): 
There were 83 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 

Physical Impairment 15 5.95% 

Visual impairment 0 0.00% 

Hearing impairment/deaf 7 2.78% 

Learning Difficulty 3 1.19% 

Learning Disability 2 0.79% 

Autism/Asperger’s 6 2.38% 

Mental health condition 10 3.97% 

Dementia 0 0.00% 

Long-term illness that affects your daily life 26 10.32% 

Prefer not to say 33 13.10% 

Not Answered 169 67.06% 

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180

Not Answered

Prefer not to say

Long-term illness that affects your dail…

Mental health condition

Autism/Asperger’s

Learning Disability

Learning Difficulty

Hearing impairment/deaf

Physical Impairment

Page 125

Agenda Item 8



 

 

22. Consider Disabled?  

If you have Cancer, diabetes or HIV this is seen as a disability under the Equalities Law. 

Or you have selected any of the boxes in the question above. 

Do you think of yourself as disabled? 

There were 145 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 

Yes 17 6.75% 

No 99 39.29% 

Prefer not to say 29 11.51% 

Not Answered 107 42.46% 

Other (please specify) 

There were 0 responses to this part of the question. 

  

0 20 40 60 80 100 120

Not Answered

Prefer not to say

No

Yes

Page 126

Agenda Item 8



 

 

23. Religion or Belief. 

What is your religion/belief? 

There were 209 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 

No religion/belief 75 29.76% 

Christian 103 40.87% 

Hindu 1 0.40% 

Muslim 1 0.40% 

Jewish 1 0.40% 

Sikh 0 0.00% 

Prefer not to say 28 11.11% 

Not Answered 43 17.06% 

Other religion or belief? 

ReligionorBelief.xls
x       There were 9 responses to this part of the question. 

  

0 20 40 60 80 100 120

Not Answered

Prefer not to say

Jewish

Muslim

Hindu

Christian

No          religion/belief

Page 127

Agenda Item 8



 

 

24. Ethnicity. 

Race/Ethnicity (please note that Sikh and Jewish are collected in the Religion/Belief Section 
above) – do you identify as:  

There were 211 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Option Total Percent 

Prefer not to say 19 7.54% 

English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern Irish/British 185 73.41% 

Irish 5 1.98% 

Gypsy or Irish Traveller 0 0.00% 

Roma 0 0.00% 

Polish 0 0.00% 

Portuguese 0 0.00% 

Latvian 0 0.00% 

White and Black Caribbean 0 0.00% 

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180 200

Not Answered

Pakistani

Indian

Irish

English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern Irish/Br
itish

Prefer not to say

Page 128

Agenda Item 8



 

 

White & Black African 0 0.00% 

White & Asian 0 0.00% 

Indian 1 0.40% 

Pakistani 1 0.40% 

Bangladeshi 0 0.00% 

Chinese 0 0.00% 

African 0 0.00% 

Caribbean 0 0.00% 

Arab 0 0.00% 

Not Answered 41 16.27% 

Other ethnic background (please describe) 

There were 7 responses to this part of the question. 

Ethnicity.xlsx

 

  

Page 129

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Appendix 10d. 
Consultation Poster. 

 

Page 130

Agenda Item 8



 
Climate Change Community 

Engagement Consultation 

Feedback Report 

 

The consultation will help the 

Council understand what the 

public’s desire is for achieving net 

zero (the balance between the 

amount of carbon produced and 

the amount removed from the 

atmosphere) and what they think 

the priority actions should be. 

The consultation started on 

Monday 25th July and ended 

Friday 30th September 2022.  

 

Online Consultation 

The survey took place online and 

was sent out via:  

• Social media 

• Council website  

• Schools 

• SYMBOL (Sefton Youth Making 

Better Opportunities with 

Leaders) 

Page 131

Agenda Item 8



 

Drop-In Sessions  

People came to the venues to ask 

questions and complete the 

survey. 

• Bootle Library, L20 3EN 

• Waterloo Community Centre, 

L22 1RD 

• The Atkinson, PR8 1DB 

 

 

Results 

252 people responded. 

Key findings from the survey:  

• 65% of people want more 

information around what the 

Council is doing. 

• 73% support the creation of a 

Climate Change Community 

Engagement Group/Assembly. 

• 81% would like to be involved in 

any future Climate Change 

work.  

• Top main areas of focus should 

be energy, waste, transport, 

clean air, and green space.  

 

 

 

What happens next? 

Everyone has a role to play in 

tackling Climate Change. 

Page 132

Agenda Item 8



An engagement plan has been 

created involving all parts of the 

community. 

The plan will be reviewed every 

year until 2030. 

 

Page 133

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Equality Analysis Report - Climate Change 
Community Engagement Consultation   

Details of Proposal 

In July 2019 the Council declared a Climate Emergency and a 

commitment was made to reduce emissions and reach net zero 

Council Operations by 2030.  

The Council has done a lot of work on how to approach the 

Climate Emergency. However, engagement with the public has 

been limited due to the Covid pandemic. 

The consultation will help the Council understand what the 

public’s ambition is for achieving net zero and what they think the 

priority actions should be. 

The results and feedback from the consultation will create a 

pathway for future communications. This will be achieved by 

working collectively and collaboratively with key stakeholders via 

a number of engagement methods.  

 

Consultation Undertaken 

The public consultation process was conducted from Monday 25 

July to Friday 30 September 2022 for a period of 10 weeks.  

The consultation aimed to:  

• Receive public feedback on the Council’s Climate Change 

Emergency Plan. 

 

• Understand the public’s ambition for achieving net-zero. 

 

• Check if the public agree with the Plan’s priority actions. 

 

• Find out who is interested in participating in the Council’s Climate 

Change work.  

Page 135

Agenda Item 8



• Potentially set up a group to regularly focus on Climate Change 

issues. 

 

The consultation involved the gathering of both quantitative and 

qualitative feedback and the following methods were used:  

 

• Public consultation online survey, using the “Your Sefton, Your 

Say” Platform.  

 

• 5 public drop-in sessions using different venues in the area, to 

encourage residents to attend, ask questions and complete the 

survey in-person (Bootle Library, L20 3EN, Waterloo Community 

Centre, L22 1RD and The Atkinson, PR8 1DB).  

The consultation was also distributed via internal (member 

briefings, intranet, yammer) and external channels (social media, 

Council website, schools, SYMBOL).  

Documents including the report, questionnaire and Climate 

Change strategy were produced in easy read format. 

 

In total, 252 people took part in the survey.  

 

There are 5 key takeaways from the consultation: 

• There is a need for the Council to provide more information on 

how individuals can reduce their carbon footprint.  

 

• A demand for more information particularly relating to what the 

Council is doing, how to save energy at home and current 

consultations which may impact our climate. 

 

• There is a desire for people to work with the Council on this 

important agenda. 

 

• Support for the Council to create a Climate Change 

Community Engagement Group. 

 

• Encouragement for the following areas to be covered 

particularly in the engagement group - renewable energy, 

Page 136

Agenda Item 8



waste, transport, clean air and reducing pollution and quality of 

public space.  

 

Ramifications of Proposal 

The whole population of Sefton will be affected by Climate 

Change at some point. However, because it is a vast topic the 

scope for the consultation has been kept narrow. This means that 

it is not focusing on any policy changes/decisions. It is a starting 

point for future engagement with key stakeholders, making the 

equality impact of the consultation low.  

 

Are there any protected characteristics that will be 

disproportionally affected in comparison to others? 

The protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 are:  

 

• Age  

• Disability  

• Gender Reassignment  

• Marriage and Civil Partnership  

• Race  

• Religion or Belief  

• Sex  

• Sexual Orientation  

• Pregnancy and Maternity 

• Care Experienced  

 

 

Age 
 

The Council have committed to engaging young people with this 

agenda. However, they tend to be less engaged with Council 

activities than older people.  

 

Results 
 

231 respondents out of 252 provided their age profiles.  

 

Page 137

Agenda Item 8



 
 

Respondents ranged in age from under 18 to over 75, with 60% 

aged between 40 and 69.  

 

To boost responses from young people, work was completed prior 

to the consultation with Sefton Young Advisors to help shape the 

questions that were asked, guide where we advertised and 

encourage young people to engage. 

 

The number of responses from young people was not 

representative of the borough (6% were aged 29 and under). 

There was an age gap despite targeted communications. 

 

Actions in the Climate Change Community Engagement Plan 

have been identified due to the mitigating factors identified in the 

consultation. 

 

As a Council we need to communicate more and provide 

Climate Change information via a number of methods – microsite, 

E-mail, newsletter, national campaigns, social media (particularly 

Instagram) and Council website.  

 

More engagement work will also be completed with the creation 

of a Climate Emergency Engagement Group/Assembly which will 

incorporate all parts of the community with a focus on the 

protected groups identified.  

 

 

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80

Not Answered

Prefer not to say

70 - 79

60 - 69

50 – 59

40 - 49

30 - 39

18 - 29

Under 18

Page 138

Agenda Item 8



Disability 

 

Results 

 
69 people responded to the question on disability out of 252. The 

highest received was from those with a long-term illness that 

affects their everyday lives, followed by people with a physical 

impairment and a mental health condition.  

 

 
 
The questionnaire was primarily online, in easy read format. As well 

as paper copies being sent out on request.  

 

5 drop-in sessions were also held in fully accessible locations 

attended by a Climate Officer to offer support and advice.  

 

The Climate Change Community Engagement Plan will provide 

advice and support for all members of the community and fully 

include individuals within the protected characteristic of disability.  

 

The Council and partners will ensure communication is clear, 

effective and accessible via verbal, written and visual methods. 

For example, having a dedicated Climate area and creating an 

e-newsletter which will have easy accessibility.  

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180

Not Answered

Prefer not to say

Long-term illness that affects your dail…

Mental health condition

Autism/Asperger’s

Learning Disability

Learning Difficulty

Hearing impairment/deaf

Physical Impairment

Page 139

Agenda Item 8



Gender Reassignment 

No Impact Identified  

 

Marriage and Civil Partnership 

No Impact Identified 

 

Race 

No Impact Identified 

 

Religion or Belief 

No Impact Identified 

 

Sex 

No Impact Identified 

 

Sexual Orientation 

No Impact Identified 

 

Pregnancy and Maternity 

No Impact Identified 

 

Care Experienced  

No Impact Identified 

 

Is there evidence that the Public Sector Equality Duties will 

be met? 

 

The Equality Act 2010 requires that those subject to the Equality 

Duty must, in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to 

the need to:  

 

1. Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation 

and other conduct prohibited by the Act.  

 

2. Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a 

protected characteristic and those who do not.  

 

Page 140

Agenda Item 8



3. Foster good relations between people who share a protected 

characteristic and those who do not. The Act explains that having 

due regard for advancing equality involves: 

 

• Removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people due 

to their protected characteristics.  

 

• Taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected 

groups where these are different from the needs of other 

people.  

 

• Encouraging people from protected groups to participate in 

public life or in other activities where their participation is 

disproportionately low. 

 

Further work is required on analysing data gaps and identifying 

any further key trends from the survey results.  

The results and feedback from the consultation will create a 

pathway for future interactions, in the form of a Climate Change 

Community Engagement Plan.  

The actions will provide positive impacts for individuals and 

communities within the borough.  
 

What actions will follow if proposal accepted by cabinet & 

Council? 

A Climate Change Community Engagement Plan will be 

implemented which will be monitored regularly and reviewed 

annually up to 2030.  

 

Proposed Actions 

1. Develop a dynamic Climate Emergency Communications 

Strategy. 

2. Produce a dedicated Climate area/noticeboard/microsite. 

Page 141

Agenda Item 8



3. Design a strong, vibrant Climate logo. The agreed design will be 

used consistently across the Council. 

4. Create a Climate Emergency E-mail address/online form, so 

members of the public can join a mailing list. 

5. Produce a Climate e-newsletter, which will be distributed 

quarterly. 

6. Create a Climate Emergency Engagement Group/Assembly, to 

influence and raise awareness in the community while also 

working with other established groups in the borough. 

7. Develop specific campaigns and link in with national events to 

run through social media platforms, Council website and other 

outlets. 

8. Improve and extend the Council's online Climate resources, 

including putting web banners on the Council homepage. 

9. Support with communication campaigns focusing on key areas 

such as energy, waste, and transport. 

The target audience of the plan will be wide-ranging in scope and 

involve public, private and voluntary sector stakeholders.  

If/when the actions are approved, a further Equality Impact 

Assessment can be conducted prior to implementation (if 

required).  

 

 

Page 142

Agenda Item 8


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of meeting held on Friday 13th January 2023.
	6 Physical Activity Strategy consultation.
	7 Public Health Procurement - recommissioning of the Living Well Sefton Service, Sefton Stop Smoking Service and Integration of Health Checks.
	Panel Report
	Agenda Item 7 
	Annex 1 
	Section B 
	Section C 
	Section D 
	Annex 2  
	Section A- Lifestyle service questions
	Section B 
	Section C 
	Questions on NHS Health Checks 
	Some Questions About You. 
	Annex 3  

	Interim Equality Impact Assessment
	Interim Equality Analysis Report
	Details of proposal:
	Ramifications of Proposal:
	Are there any protected characteristics that will be disproportionally affected in comparison to others?
	Consultation:
	Overview (why the consultation is taking place)
	Background
	Aims of the Consultation
	Objectives of the Consultation
	Who will be affected by the Consultation?
	1. Service Provider: current service provider staff i.e., LWS will be affected
	2. Service users (previous and current service users):
	3. Non- Service Users: Workshops and meetings targeting groups who do not usually engage with services. This will be done by working with organisations that offer support to such individuals such as Peoples first, voluntary, community and faith sector...
	4. Stakeholders: Workshops and individual meetings will be held with a range of partners in order to gain their insight on the commissioning and delivery of the service ensuring that services key stakeholders are involved in the long term.

	What are the arrangements in place to review the evidence?
	Why have we chosen to consult with the chosen groups?
	Identified Impacts of the Consultation current and previous service users.
	Who is the lead department and who else is involved? i.e., stakeholders / other departments/ organisations.
	Potential barriers to engage service users and people in the consultation.
	Mitigation

	Why is the consultation important?
	Is there evidence that the Public Sector Equality Duties will be met?
	What actions will follow if proposal accepted by cabinet & Council?
	Include details of any mitigating action and ongoing monitoring to address any of the equality impacts highlighted above.
	Protected Characteristics and the Identification of Potential Issues/Barriers:


	Public Health Procurement Privacy Notice

	8 Climate Change Emergency Feedback & Evaluation report.
	Climate Emergency Consultation Report
	Table of contents
	Climate Change Community Engagement Consultation Report. Feedback from the 2022 Public Consultation Exercise. February 2023.   
	1. Introduction. 
	2. Background. 
	3. Consultation Purpose. 
	4. Consultation Methodology  
	5. Survey Respondents. 
	6. Summary of Quantitative Analysis. 
	7. Summary of Qualitative Analysis.
	8. Conclusions. 
	9. Next Steps 
	Appendix 10a  
	Appendix 10b  
	Appendix 10c. 
	Appendix 10d. 
	Consultation Poster. 


	Climate Emergency Consultation Report Easy Read
	Climate Emergency Consultation Equality Impact Assessment




